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Narrative Report
Intreduction

The Council’s financial performance for the year ended 31st March 2017 is as set out in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and its financial position is as set out in the Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement.

These financial statements have been prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom far the year ended 31st March 2017 (the Code) and the Department for Communities Accounts Direction, Circular LG
10/2017. It is the purpose of this foreword to explain, in an easily understandable way, the financial facts in relation to the
Council.

This Statement of Accounts explains Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council's finances during the financial year
2016/17 and its financial position at the end of that year. It follows approved accounting standards and is necessarily technical
in parts.

The purpose of the Narrative Report is to make the financial statements understandable to as wide an audience as possible. it
is not intended to comment on Council policies and it is not part of the financial statements but is however prepared on the
basis that it is consistent with the financial statements.

Group Accounts

The Code requires Local Authorities to consider all their interests and to prepare a full set of group financial statements where
they have material interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough
Council does not have material interests in such bodies and accordingly is not required to prepare group financial statements.

The Movement in Reserves Statement

This Statement, as set out on page 25, shows the movement in the year an the different reserves held by the Council, analysed
into ‘usable reserves' {i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The
*'Surplus or {deficit) on the provision of services' line shows the true economic cost of providing the Council's services, more
detalls of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory
amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for Local Tax purposes. The 'Net increase/decrease before
transfers to statutory and other reserves' line shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to
or from statutory and other reserves undertaken by the Council.

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This statement, as set out on page 26, shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.



The Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet, as set out on page 27, shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the Council's assets and liabilities.
The net assets of the Council {assets less labilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in
two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Council may use to provide
services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use {for example the
Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves are
those that the authority is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised
gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become avallable to provide services if the
assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments
between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.

The Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement, as set out on page 28, shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the
reporting pertod. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows
as aperating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator
of the extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of
services provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for
resources which are intended to contribute to the Council’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities
are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council.

Financial Report

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Council increased its General Fund and other reserves by £2.2m to £27.2m. The
Council’s net budget of £65m was supplemented by £0.22m for prior year finalisation payment of district rates. The total Net
Operating Expenditure reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is £69.1m (this includes amounts
for depreciation, impairments and other non budget accountancy adjustments).

Expenditure on capital projects during the year amounted to £3.71m. This included expenditure on a number of projects and
initiatives Including the Banbridge Civic Building {£1.22m), Portadown Pump House (£0.21m), Gym Equipment (£0.15m),
Solitude Play Park Area (£0.15m} and Refuse Vehicles {£0.52m).

The Armagh City, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council has been in existence for more than two years making comparative
information available which has been included in these accounts to help make the information provided more understandable
and relevant to as wide an audience as possible.

(a) The Council's financial accounts for the year ended 31st March 2017 are set out on pages 25 to 98 and consist of:

® The Movement in Reserves Statement - this shows the movement in and accumulated balances of reserves held by
the Council at the year end. These are categorised as either 'Usable' (i.e. consideration can be given regarding
utilising these amounts) or 'Unusable’ (i.e. resources for which a decision has already been made regarding how they
are to be used e.g. funding one-off projects).

L The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - the Council's main revenue account covering income and
expenditure on all services.

&  The Balance Sheet - which sets out the Council's assets and tiabilities at the year end.

] The Cash Flow Statement - this includes information regarding inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions
for both revenue and capital.

* Notes to the accounts.



(b}

{c)

{d)

(e}

{f

During 2016/17 the Council incurred gross expenditure on Continuing Operations in the amount of £83.2m (2015/16
£84.2m). This was supplemented by income from various sources including grants and service users of £18.7m
(2015/16 £19.2m) resulting in Net Expenditure of £64.5m (2015/16 £65.0m). Service expenditure and income is
recorded in the accounts within Note 2a and is summarised in the table below:

Services Gross Expenditure Gross Income Net Expenditure
£'000 £'000 £'000

Leisure & Recreational Services 35,321 7,834 27,487
Environmental Services 27,793 3,605 24,188
Planning & Development Services 12,194 5,000 7,194
Highways and Transport Services 725 917 {192)
DRM and Corporate Management 4,553 87 4,866
Other Services 2,257 1,291 966
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 83,243 18,734 64,509

The net expenditure incurred was less than the net budget set by the Council for 2016/17 and this was largely due to
an overall underspend on in-year Revenue budgets.

There were no material assets acquired during the year, the highest expenditure being approximately £280k for a
Refuse Collection Vehicle, and no additional significant liabilities were incurred, having regard to the normal
activities of the Council.

The Council's net pension liability is in the region of £49.9m. This is an increase of more than £17m and relates
mainly to changes in financial assumptions. The net pension liability is the total estimated liability of the Council to
its current workforce and retired members of the scheme. There is no requirement for the Council to make a one-
off payment to fund this liability and there are therefore no immediate pressures which the Council has to fund from
Reserves or make any material changes to the rates. Details regarding pensions are included in Note 20.

Part of the Local Government Reform Process included the transfer of functions, services and staff from Central to
Local Government. The outworkings of the transfer were that staff retained their pension entitlements and on-going
access to the Civil Service Pension Scheme (this is an unfunded scheme). The Council, being the employer of the
tranferred staff, was cobligated to contribute towards the employees pensions. However, this is processed in the
form of in-year payments and there is therefore no pension provision.

A review of Council assets resulted in the re-measurement and re-lifing of assets mainly arising from the
amalgamation of legacy asset registers. This review resulted in an adjustment to the re-lifing of Council assets in the
region of £2.2m, re-measurement of Heritage assets to the value of £5m and of Car Park Resurfacing of £2.4m.
These adjustments are reflected in Note 10 in the accounts and are included under the Reclassifications & Transfers
heading (re-lifing) and within the Revaluation Increases/(decreases) to the Revaluation Reserve (re-measurement).
None of the adjustments had an impact on Council reserves.

There were no significant changes in accounting policies during the year.



(]

(h}

{i)

]

(k)

There were no major changes in the Council's statutory functions during the year and the accounts reflect the
additional functions, responsibilities, assets and liabilites which the Council inherited from Central Government on
1st April 2015. The Council continues to strive for excellence through the delivery of effective and efficient services
for local ratepayers through robust budgets and low rates. The Council is also in the final stages of agreeing an
ambitious Capital Plan which will result in significant investment in the Borough over the next 3 years and beyond.
Qrganisational reviews are underway and the completion of this work will make the organisation fit for purpose and
able to meet the business and citizen challenges that lie ahead.

During the 2016/17 financial year the Council continued to fund the delivery of services and capital investment by
means of income from the district rates and grants from Central Government together with reliance on existing
loans and borrowings amounting to just over £42m inherited by the Council from the three former Councils. All
historical loans were secured by Government borrowings and LOBOs (Lender Option Borrower Option). No new
loans or borrowings were required by the Council in 2016/17.

There were no significant contingencies during the financial year. There was an increase in the provision for bad debt
from £72k the previous year to £232k in 2016/17 to recognise the level of debt associated with historical Parking
Charge Notices (PCNs). There were impairments amounting to approximately £399k during the financial year in
respect of Council buildings as confirmed by the Council's independent valuers.

There are no material post balance sheet events to be reported upon at the date of apporval of these financial
statements.

There are a number of economic factors that can impact on local councils, including inflation, interest rates, pay
settlements and general uncertainty within financial markets. The current economic climate continues to provide
challenges for local businesses within the Borough and that in turn has a direct impact on Council income. However,
despite apparent difficulties and pressures, the current situation is reasonably stable and that affords the
opportunity for robust estimates and projections of need and funding. The Council therefore continues to provide
value for money to local ratepayers whilst developing strategies and plans for further enhancement to the Borough
which are affordable and effective.



Statement of the Council’s and Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
The Council’s Responsibilities
Under Section 1 of the Local Government Finance Act {Nerthern Ireland) 2011 a council shall make arrangements for the

proper administration of its financial affairs. A council shall designate an officer of the council as its chief financial officer and
these arrangements shall be carried out under the supervision of its chief financial officer.

Under Regulation 7 of the Local Government {Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 the Council, or a
Committee, is required by resolution, to approve the accounts.

These accounts were approved by the Performance & Audit Committee and by the Chief Financial Officer on 21 September
2017.

The Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities

Under Regulation 8 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations {Northern Ireland) 2015, the Chief Financial
Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s Statement of Accounts in the form directed by the Department for
Communities.

The accounts must give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the financial year and the
financial position as at the end of the financial year.

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial officer is required to:

® observe the Accounts Direction issued by the Department for Communities including compliance with the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.

] follow relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis,
and

. make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.
The Chief Financial Officer is also required to:

. keep proper accounting records that are up-to-date, and

] take reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.



Annual Governance Statement 2016/17

Scope of Responsibility

Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

The Council also has a duty under Local Government (Best Value) Act (Northern Ireland) 2002 to
make arrangements for continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised,
having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions,
which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

The Council has prepared an Annual Governance Statement which is consistent with the principles
of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. This
statement explains how the Council meets the requirements of Regulation 4 of the Local
Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 in relation to the
publication of an Annual Governance Statement.,

The Purpose of the Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by
which the Council is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages
with and leads the community. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic
objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-
effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage
risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and
objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.
The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise
the risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage
them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framewark has been in place at Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough
Council for the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of approval of the Financial
Statements and the Annual Governance Statement.

The Governance Framework

As part of the governance system, Council approved a traditional committee model made up of 7
committees linked to the Corparate Plan and organisational design complementing the need for
a planning committee and performance and audit committee.

The structure is designed to reflect the Council's Vision and Strategic Priorities as set out in the
current Corporate Plan i.e. Prosper the Place, Service the People and Strengthen our Pasition. A



key element of the structure is to ensure a ‘One Council’ approach by enabling cross Directorate
working. The committee system is inclusive of all parties and enables all 41 Members to participate
in the decision making process in an open and transparent way engendering a sense of ownership
and belonging. The structure is illustrated below:

COUNCIL

" PERFORMANCE "~ POSITION PEOPLE

Governance Performance Planning &  Strategic Environmental  Leisure &

Policy & & Audit Regulatory ‘and Services Community ke
Resources Services  Community Services |
Plzanning |

The Governance, Policy and Resources Committee is responsible for Organisational Development
and Change, ICT, Procurement, Governance, Legal, Finance and Business Services, Human
Resources and Civic, Democratic and Customer Services.

The Performance and Audit Committee is responsible for Internal Audit, Risk Management,
Performance and Improvement. It provides an independent assurance on the adequacy of the
Council’s risk management framework and associated control environment and an independent
scrutiny of the Council’s financial and non-financial performance.

The Planning and Regularity Services Committee is responsible for Planning Applications,
Enforcements and Area Planning.

The Strategic and Community Planning Committee is responsible for Corporate and Community
Planning, Enforcement, Asset and Fleet Management, Building Control, Licensing, Contracts,
Public Bodies and Conservation.

The Economic Development and Regeneration Committee is responsible for Economic
Development, Business Development, EU Investment, Arts and Tourism Facilities, Events,
Museums, Rural Development, Town Centres and Public Realm and Car Parking.

The Environmental Services Committee is responsible for Environmental Health, Emergency
Planning, Waste Management, Public Domain, Streets, Grounds, Cemeteries and Toilets.

The Leisure and Community Services Committee is responsible for Indoor and Outdoor Leisure
Facilities, Play, Sports Development, Community Services, Good Relations and PCSP.

In addition to the above Committees there are also Working Groups in respect of Estimates and
Financial Assistance.

The Council’s Code of Governance is based on the six core principles set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE
Framework with the key elements detailed below:



FOCUS ON PURPOSE AND OUTCOMES
This is achieved by the following:

> Connected: A Community Plan for the Armagh City Banbridge & Craigavon Borough 2017-
2030

Development of a Community Planning engagement framework

2015/17 Corporate Plan and development of new Corporate Plan

Local Development Plan

Annual Performance Improvement Plan

Regeneration and Development Strategy

Strategic Masterplanning

Corporate and departmental planning

Social Media Strategy and Policy

Strategic Financial Management Framework

Establishment of a Customer Care Strategy

Development and implementation of a Performance Management System
Service Review Framewaork.

Annual Financial Report

Estimates Process

Procurement Policy, Procedures, Guidelines and training

Treasury Management reporting

VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVYY

WORKING TOGETHER
This is achieved by the following:

Council Constitution

Consultation and engagement

Development of a Community Planning engagement framework
Development of a Place shaping framework embracing new approaches to work with
partners in delivering regeneration

Standing Orders

Financial Regulations

Committee structure and reporting

Party Group Leaders Forum

Mandatory Code of Conduct for Councillors

Code of Conduct for Officers

Scheme of Delegation

Job Descriptions/Specifications

Terms and Conditions of employment

Y YWY

VY VVYVVVYY

PROMOTING VALUES OF GOOD GOVERNANCE
This is achieved by the following:

Corporate Plan

Standing Orders

Financial Regulations

Financial Assistance Scheme
Anti-Fraud Policy and Response Plan

VVYVVY



VVVVVVVVVYVVVYVYY

Whistleblowing Policy

Equality Scheme and Action Plan

Equality and Diversity Framework

Sports Development Action Plan

Gifts and Hospitality Policy

Corporate Health and Safety Policy

Register maintained of Members' pecuniary interests
Sustainable Development Plan

Good Relations Plan

Code of Conduct for Officers

Mandatory Code of Conduct for Councillors
Declarations of Interests is a standing agenda item at Council and Committee meetings
Ethical requirements of Professional bodies
Partnership Arrangements

TAKING INFORMED AND TRANSPARENT DECISIONS AND MANAGING RISK

This is achieved by the following:

>

v

VYV VVVVVVVVVVVVVVYVYVVYVYY

The Community Plan contains 9 long term outcomes arranged under 3 strategic themes -
Community, Economy and Place. Seven Thematic Action Planning Teams will be convened
to develop and deliver action plans that work towards achieving the outcomes in the plan.
Development of an asset management strategy in conjunction with the Strategic
Investment Board has been completed with a Strategic Needs Analysis completed for each
Directorate.

Ongoing work in the development of a robust Estate/Asset Management Strategy and
Asset Management Plan.

An Asset & Capital Management Project Board is in place.

Local Development Plan

NISRA Statistician

Standing Orders

Scheme of Delegation

Financial Regulations

Committee structure and reporting system

Online minutes

Council meetings are open to the public and members of the media

internal Audit Service

Performance and Audit Committee with externally appointed Lay Representatives (2}
Risk Management Policy

Risk Management training

Data Protection and Access to Information Policies

Budgetary Control

Elected Members Development Charter accreditation

Staff induction and training

Ongoing consultation processes

Legal advice obtained as necessary

6 monthly Assurance Statements

Annual Performance Self-Assessment Report



DEVELOPING CAPACITY AND CAPABILITY
This is achieved by the following:

Continuation of all Mandatory training e.g. Health and Safety
Equality training

Registration for Member Development

Members Development Charter

Training for Members

Performance and Audit Committee training

QUB Leadership Institute training

Induction training

Organisational development and capacity building
Recruitment and selection procedures

VYVVVVVVVYVY

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND ENSURING ROBUST PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY
This is achieved by the following:

Community Engagement Strategy
Community Planning Process

Regeneration and Development Strategy
Community Support Plan

Financial Assistance Policy (Information Sessions and Applicant Guidance Manual)
Rural Development Programme

Strategic Masterplanning

Local Development Plan

Statement of Community Involvement
Communication of Corporate Plan

Good Relations Action Plan

Active Communities Programme

Attendance at Council meetings of the media
Minutes of Council meetings on web site
Council web site

Corporate Complaints Pracedure

YY YV VYV VVVVVYVVYVYY

The Local Government Act (NI} 2014 legislated the Council’'s general power of competence
enabling a Council to take any action it considered appropriate provided the action was not
prohibited by any other legislation. The Council has been provided with the ability to act in their
own interests and to develop innovative approaches to addressing issues in the borough. Any
issues that may require the Council to ensure the general power of competence will be processed
through the Council committee structure. The nominated Committee is the Governance, Policy
and Resources Committee. There was no expenditure under the General Power of Competence
during 2016/17.

Review of Effectiveness
The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its
governance framewaork including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is

informed by an annual review of governance, the work of the executive managers within the
Council who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance
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environment, the Head of Internal Audit’s annual report, and also by comments made by the
external auditors.

The Performance and Audit Committee provides an independent assurance on the adequacy of
the Council’s risk management framework and associated control environment. It also provides
an independent scrutiny of the Council’s financial and non-financial performance to the extent
that it exposes it to risk and weakens the control environment.

1. Members

The Council’s Standing Orders and Financial Regulations provide the framework for its decision
making processes and sets out the detailed procedures and codes of conduct by which Members
and officers operate to achieve Council objectives. Members meet regularly on a formal basis to
set the strategic direction and monitor the service delivery of the Council. The following
Committee Structure is in place:

Governance, Policy and Resources Committee
Performance and Audit Committee

Planning and Regulatory Services Committee
Strategic and Community Planning Committee
Economic Development and Regeneration Committee
Environmental Services Committee

Leisure and Community Services Committee

YVVYVVVVYY

The Group Party Leaders Forum seeks to provide an informal sounding board on major strategic
issues in advance of submission to Committee/Council, thereby facilitating and streamlining the
conduct of Council business. This group meets on a monthly basis.

2. Senior Officers

Strategic Directors and Heads of Department completed & monthly Stewardship Certificates and
Assurance Statements respectively. In signing their Stewardship Certificate Directors opinions
were informed by the following:

Assurance from relevant Heads of Department

Directorate and Departmental Risk Registers {where applicable)
Operational policies and procedures

Internal Audit reports

Administrative procedures (including segregation of duties)
Management Supervision

System of delegation and accountability

VVVVYVVYY

The Executive Management Team review the Corporate Risk Register on a quarterly basis.

3. Performance & Audit Committee

The Council has a Performance & Audit Committee which reports to full Council and oversees the
work of Internal Audit which operates to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards which came

into effect from 1 April 2013. The terms of reference (Audit Committee Charter) which sets out
the purpose and roles and responsibilities was revised in September 2016.

11



There are 7 Members on the Committee and during 2016/17 meetings were held in May,
September, November 2016 and February 2017. The Northern Ireland Audit Office was in
attendance at all the meetings during the year. In line with best practice two external Lay
Representatives were appointed to the Committee.

The Performance and Audit Committee Annual Report 2016/17 was presented at the May 2017
meeting. The annual report included the annual audit committee self-assessment and this was
completed in time to support the completion of the Annual Governance Statement. Update
training was held on 27 September 2016 which cansisted of facilitated sessions covering the
purpose of the Audit Committee, support for the Committee, engagement with Internal Audit,
membership and support and meetings.

Areas for development were considered for each area and the output of the training was an Action
Plan which was considered and approved at the November 2016 Performance & Audit Committee
meeting.

4. internal Audit

The aim of internal Audit is to provide an independent assurance and advisory service which will
help the Council achieve its objectives and improve the effectiveness of its risk management,
control and governance processes. In preparing the overall audit opinion Internal Audit reviewed
all audit and risk activity carried out during the year and the following extract is taken from the
2016/17 Internal Audit Annual Report:

‘The overall apinion is that there is a SATISFACTORY level of internal control within the Council’s
systems and procedures. This opinion is based upon the work of Internal Audit during the 2016/17
financial year. Internal Audit is not able to give an opinion on areas that have not been covered by
the service’. In all areas Internal Audit recommendations were agreed with senior management,
with improvement plans drawn up and priority actions required to be implemented within defined
timescales.

The effectiveness of the Council’s internal controls is examined in detail through the work of
Internal Audit. The audit plan is based on a needs and risk assessment process that focuses
resources on higher risk areas and meets the professional standards required by the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards. Based on evidence from planned audits and any special investigations,
Internal Audit reports to the Performance & Audit Committee on any major weaknesses that have
been identified in the internal controls examined and highlights where important improvements
are considered necessary.

Internal Audit continue to facilitate the development of risk management throughout the Council.
A self-assessment against the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards was completed in May 2017
with the conclusion being that Internal Audit was substantially compliant and therefore operating

effectively. During the year 23 audits were completed, of these 6 were given limited assurance
and details are noted below:

12



offered and worked.

Management of | At the time of audit there was no | Recommendations have been
Casuals effective means of determining the | agreed with Senior
amount and value of casual hours | Management, improvement

plans have been drawn up and
priority actions are required to
be implemented  within
defined timescales.

Council Depot

At the time of the audit the area of
Stores was not clearly defined
within the Council’s organisational
structure and as a result there was
no clear line of assigned
responsibility and no
harmonisation of systems

With effect from June 2017
the newly appointed Fleet
Manager has responsibilities
for the Stores.

2016/17 year.

Creditors At the time of audit issues in Recommendations have been
Payments relation to duplicate payments and | implemented by Senior
the number of duplicate suppliers Management.
on the Integra system were noted.
Catering The key issue identified was A decision was taken to
significant successive catering terminate this contract
losses at a Council facility for which | and Management have made
Council was contractually liable. substantial changes to the
service with a restaurant
service no longer provided.
Financial The audit identified a lack of | Recommendations have been
Assistance evaluation and vouching of grants | agreed with Senior
Programme awarded in the 2015/16 year. Management, improvement
plans have been drawn up and
priority actions are required to
he implemented  within
defined timescales.
Trade Waste There was an absence of key Recommendations have been
controls in relation to invoicing, agreed with Senior
payments and collections in the Management, improvement

plans have been drawn up and
priority actions are required to
be implemented  within
defined timescales.

5. Other explicit review/assurance mechanisms

There was a review of Risk Management during the year which involved facilitated workshops with
the Executive Management Team, Heads of Department, the Performance & Audit Committee
and the South Lake Leisure Centre Project Team. Key changes to the risk management process
included the introduction of risk appetite and target risk score for each risk as well as evidence to
assess the effectiveness of each control. It was decided to discontinue the 4 Directorate Risk
Registers with risks in the Directorate Risk Registers aligned to the relevant Departmental Risk
Registers. Defining the appetite for each risk has set the boundaries and provides clear guidance

13



on the limits of risk which staff can take, whether their consideration is of a threat and the cost of
control, or an opportunity and the costs of trying to exploit it.

The Northern Ireland Audit Office provides a level of assurance through the provision of their
annual audit and issuing of a report to those charged with governance to address issues identified.

External funding received throughout the year is subject to independent zudits from the relevant
funders i.e. Europe, Government Departments, SEUPB etc.

Role of Chief Financial Officer

The Chief Executive is the Council's designated Chief Financial Officer under the Local Government
Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. He has authority over all other officers for the efficient
management and execution of the Council’s functions.

in fulfilling this role, the Chief Executive is supported by a number of fully qualified and
experienced staff within the Performance Directorate who are members of various bodies within
the Consultative Committee of Accountancy Bodies (CCAB) and as such ensure the decisions made
by the CFO are based on sound technical knowledge and understanding.

The Council’s financial arrangements conform to the governance requirements of the CIPFA
Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2010) as set out in the
Application Note to Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: A Framework.

Significant Governance Issues

1. Local Government Reform - Transformation

Due to complexities of three legacy Councils and two transferring functions merging there has
been significant time and effort expended establishing a sound foundation on which to build the
new organisation. Following an initial period of transition, the Council are now working towards a
programme of service transfarmation. There is significant corporate risk around the delivery of
the Council’s Community and Corporate Plans if change is not managed effectively across the
Council. Three of four Strategic Directors (including an Interim Director} and all Heads of
Department have been appointed, and progress is being made to fill the next tiers of the
organisational structure.

2. local Development Plan

The Local Development Plan is included as a current risk on the Planning Department risk register.
The main risk in relation to delivery of the Local Development Plan is that it may be subject to
challenge at various stages of the consultation process. The plan is technical, complex and process
driven and factors that can hinder the delivery of the plan include the resourcing and scheduling
of appeals and availability of key statutory partners to support the Council’'s plan. In order to
mitigate the risk there are plans to establish a Project Management Group, go out to consultation
in relation to Preferred Options Papers and commence preparation of the draft Plan Strategy. The
Council has alsa published its Statement of Community Involvement which defines how we engage
with the community and key stakeholders in the delivery of planning functions.

14



3. Interreg llla Programme Ireland/Northern ireland 2000-2006 Project Ref.026413
Wood Derived Biomass Heating

On 6 May 2011 the Department of Enterprise, Trade and Investment {DETI) wrote to the legacy
Craigavon Borough Council requesting a claw back of £198,747 in relation to the European Funded
Biomass Boifer Scheme. On Wednesday 23 November 2011 DETI served a Writ of Summons
against Craigavon Borough Council. The Council is seeking to resolve and close this case through a
formal mediation process. A provision for the clawback had been included in the Council’s
accounts.

4. Armagh City and District Council — Legal Case

This matter is very complex and lengthy and has lasted over 8 years and relates to a portion of
ground that the Council owned in Keady and had been attempting to make available for health
related purposes. There is an ongoing case with the NI Ombudsman. The Council is attempting to
resolve and close this case through a formal mediation process.

5. Health & Recreation Fraud

Internal Audit were notified in November 2016 of potential missing lodgements in a Health &
Recreation facility. Internal Audit carried out a Preliminary Investigation in November 2016, with
update reports being issued in Japuary and April 2017. The case is now the subject of a formal
disciplinary investigation.

We propose over the coming year to address the above matters which should enhance our
governance arrangements.

. Date 2/ /Cr//“-?—

Signed 5 v Date 2! / C{/ (F

On behalf of the Committee of the Council or the Members of the body meeting as a whole and
by the Chief Financial Officer.
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Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council

REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
INTRODUCTION

The Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 require larger local government bodies to
prepare a remuneration report as part of the statement of accounts.

ALLOWANCE AND REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS
COUNCILLORS

Allowances are payable by councils to councillors and committee members under Part 3 of the Local Government Finance Act
(Northern Ireland) 2011 and The Local Government (Payments to Counciliors) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2012, which
came into operation on 1 April 2012,

Following a review of allowances, carried out by an independent Councillors' Allowances Remuneration Panel, which was
appointed in May 2013, the then Minister of the Environment advised the Northern Ireland Assembly in a written statement of
the new levels of allowances applicable for councillors from 1 April 2015,

Guidance and determinations on Councillors’ Allowances applicable from 1 April 2016 were issued by the Department for
Communities on 6 July 2016 (Circular LG 14/2016) and on 16 March 2016 (Circular LG 10/2016). Consolidated guidance
superseding all previous guidance and assoctated addenda was issued on 14 December 2016 {Circular LG 23/2016). Details of
the allowances paid to individual councillors are published on the Council's website at

www.ArmaghBanbridgeCraigavon.gov.uk.

Following local elections on 22 May 2014, 462 councillors were elected to the 11 new councils for a four year term. Armagh
City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council had 41 councillors in 2016/17.

SENIOR EMPLOYEES

The remuneration of senior employees employed by the Council is determined by the Council in line with that determined by
the National Joint Council (NJC) for Local Government Services. Senior staff are those staff who are members of the Executive
Management Team.

Council appointments of employees are made in accordance with the Local Government Staff Commissions’ Code of
Procedures on Recruitment and Selection, which requires appointment to be on merit and on the basis of fair and open
competition.

Uniess otherwise stated below, the officials covered by this report hold appointments which are open-ended.
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ALLOWANCES PAID TO COUNCILLORS

The total amount pald to Councillors by way of allowances, under Part 3 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern
treland) 2011 and the Local Government (Payments to Councillors) Regulations {(Northern Ireland) 2012 was:

Table 1: Total Allowances paid to councillors (audited information)

Allowance 2016/17 2015/16
Total Allowances Number of Total Allowances Number of
£ Councillors receiving £ Councillors receiving
the Allowance the Allowance
Basic Allowance 583,114 46 582,198 41
Special Responsibility 98,581 g 99,000 19
Allowance
Mayor's Allowance 18,180 2 18,000 1
|[Deputy Mayar's 8,065 3 8,000 1
Allowance
[mileage Allowance 45,995 35 43,850 36
]
Public Transport and 46 1 0 0
Other Travel
Subsistence 642 10 842 7
Caurses/ Conferences
Visits (registration & 2,104 11 119 5
joining fees)
Dependents' Carers 3,800 3 2,285 2
Allowance
TOTAL ALLOWANCES 760,536 754,294

Due to in year Assembly Elections and subsequent co opting to Council, there were 3 number of members filling the Council

positions.

Details of the allowances paid to individual councillors in 2016/17 are published on the council website at
www.ArmaghBanbridgeCraigavon.gov.uk.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR EMPLOYEES

The remuneration of senior employees covers the Executive Management Team. The following table provides details of the
remuneration paid to senior employees in 2016/17 all of whom were in post for the full year:

Table 2: Remuneration of Senior Employees (audited Information)

Officers 2016/17 2015/16
Salary Bonus [Benefitsin| Total Salary Bonus (Benefitsin| Total
Payments kind Payments kind
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Chief Executive 115-120 0 0 115- 105-110 0 0 105-110
R Wilson 120
Director of Place 80 -85 0 0 80-85 80-85 0 0 80 -85
O Murtagh
Director of Position 80 -85 0 0 80-85 80-85 0 0 80 -85
S O0'Gorman
Director of People 95 . 100 0 0 95-100 0 0 0 0
M Reardon

There was no Director of Performance during 2016/17 as this post is still to be recruited.
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Councils are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive
Management Team and the median remuneration of the Councils workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive Management Team in the financial year 2016/17 was
£115k - £120k. This was 5.2 times the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £22.2k. (2015/16 : 5.1 times}

Table 3: Relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive Management Team and the
median remuneration of the Councils workforce {(audited information)

2016/17 2015/16
Salary Band of Highest Paid member of the 115-120 K 105- 110 K&
Executive Management Team
Median Total Remuneration £22.2k £21.6k
Ratio 5.2 5.1

In 2016/17 no employees received remuneration in excess of the highest paid member of the Executive Management Team.

Total remuneration includes salary, bonus payments and benefits in kind.

Salary
“Salary” includes gross salary, overtime and any gratia payments.

Bonus Payments

Bonus payments are based on performance levels attained and are made as part of the appraisal process. Bonuses relate to
the performance in the year in which they become payable to the individual. The bonuses reported in 2016/17 relate to
performance in 2016/17. No bonuses were paid in 2016/17.

Benefits in Kind
The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any benefits provided by the employer and treated by HM Revenue and Customs
as a taxable emolument. No Benefits in Kind were paid in 2016/17.

Exit Packages for staff
The number of exit packages provided to all staff by the Council during 2016/17, together with total cost per band and total
cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the table below:
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Table 4: Exit Packages in 2016/17 {audited information)

2016/17 2015/16
Number of | Number of | Total No |Total Cost] Numberof | Number of | Total No |Total Cost
Severance Package | Compulsory Other of Exit of Compulsory Other of Exit of
Cost Band Redundancies | departures | Packages | Packages | Redundancie | departures | Packages | Packages
agreed in each £'000 5 - agreed in each £'000
Band Band
£0 - £20,000 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 30
£20,001 - £40,000 0 o] 0 1] 0 2 2 60
£40,001 - £60,000 0 0 0 0 0 S 5 227
£60,001 - £80,000 0 0 0 0 0 3 3 209
£80,001 - £100,000 0 1] 0 0 0 1 1 87
£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 1] 0 0 4 4 440
£150,001 - £200,000 0 o a 0 0 5 5 869
Exceeds £200,000 0 o 0 0 0 2 2 450
Total v, 0 0 0 0 24 24 2,372

Costs of exit packages in 2015/16 have been restated to include additional costs to Council not previously accrued in the prior
year; and whilst reflected in the 2016/17 accounts, casts relate to decisions made during the 2015/16 year.

Pension Benefits

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Northern Ireland) (the Scheme), which is a funded defined benefit pension scheme,
which provides retirement benefits for council employees on a “career average revalued earnings” basis from 1 April 2015.
Prior to that date benefits were built up on a “final salary” basis.

From 1 April 2015 a member builds up retirement pension at the rate of 1/49th pensionable pay for each year. Pension
benefits in relation to membership between 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2015 were built up at the rate of 1/60th pensionable
pay for each year of membership. There is no automatic lump sum provided in respect of membership after 31 March 2009.
Pension benefits in relation to any membership before 1 April 2009 were built up at the rate of 1/80th (pension) and 3/80ths
(tax-free lump sum) of pensionable pay for each year of membership up to 31 March 2009. At retirement, members may give
up some pension for additional lump sum, subject to HM Revenue and Customs {HMRC) limits. The conversion rate is £12
additional lump sum for every £1 of pension given up.

Counciliors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011. The Scheme application is modified to reflect the fact that
councillors hoid an elected office. Councillor members have always accrued pension on a career average basis. Prior to 1 April
2015 pension was accrued at a rate of 1/60th and thereafter at a rate of 1/49th.

The Scheme is funded by contributions made by both employees/councillors and employers. Prior to 1 April 2009, a member's
contribution rates were fixed at 6% of their pensionable remuneration {except for those who were entitled to contribute to the
Scheme at 5% before 1 February 2003 and have remained in continuous employment). Tiered member contribution rates,
determined by the whole-time equivalent rate of pay, were introduced from 1 April 2009. From 1 April 2015, the member
contribution rates are determined on the actual rate of pay.

The ranges for the bands for tiered contribution rates are revised by the Department for Communities in April each year in
accordance with the increase applied to a pension in payment. The bands, effective from 1 April 2016, were as follows:
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Table 5; Employee Contribution Rates (audited information)

Band Range Employee Contribution Rate
1 £0- £14,000 5.50%
2 £14,001- £21,300 5.80%
3 £21,301 - £35,600 6.50%
4 £35,601 - £43,000 6.80%
5 £43,001 - £85,000 8.50%
6 More than £85,000 10.50%

Employers’ contribution rates are determined by the fund’s actuary every three years at the triennial valuation. The 2016
triennial valuation was undertaken as at 31 March 2016 and an employer contribution rate for those employers whose
participation in the Scheme is deemed to be indefinite has been set for the following three years, effective from 1 April 2017.
In addition a separate deficit funding charge has been levied on Council equivalent to 1.8% of pensionable pay, which is paid
outside of the payroll function.

Table 6: Employer Contribution Rates

Year Employer Contribution Rate
1 April 2014 - 31 March 2015 20%
1 April 2015 - 31 March 2016 20%
1 April 2016 - 31 March 2017 20%

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on 27 June 2014 and The Local
Government Pension Scheme {(Amendment and Transitional Provisions) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on 30
June 2014. Both sets of regulations are effective from 1 April 2015.

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011 and therefore have not accrued significant benefits thus far,
However, the in-year pension contributions made by the Council for all councillors during 2016/17 was £141,587 (2015/16
£141,441).

The value of pension benefits of the most senior management of the Council accrued during the year was as follows:

Table 7: Pension Benefits of senior staff in 2016/17 {audited information)

Officers Accrued Real increase in Real increase in related CETV at CETV at Real
Pension at | pension at pension age| lump sum at pension 31/3/17 31/3/16 | increase
pension age age in CETV
£ £ £ £'000 £'000 £'000
Chief Executive 35,001-40,000 2,501 - 5,000 2,501-5,000 545 484 45
R Wilson
Director of Place 30,000 - 0-2,500 0-2,500 470 429 29
0 Murtagh 35,000
Directar of Position 25,001 - 0-2,500 0-2,500 314 285 19
SO'Gorman 30,000
Director of People nil nil nil nil nil nil
M Reardon
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The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value {CETV)

This is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in
time. The benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from the scheme. It
is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or
arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the pension benefits they have accrued in their
former scheme. The penston figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their
total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies. CETVs are
calculated in accordance with The Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer Values) (Amendment) Regulations and do not take
account of any actual or potential reduction to benefits resulting from Lifetime Allowance Tax which may be due when pension
benefits are taken.

The real increase in the value of the CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued pension due
to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from another pension scheme
or arrangement) and yges common market valuation factors for the start and end of the pericd.

Chief -llixe:utive
21 September 2017
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Certificate of the Chief Financial Officer

| certify that:

{a)  the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2017 on pages 25 to 98 has been prepared in the form
directed by the Department for Communities and under the accounting policies set out on pages 29 to 53.

{b)  in my opinion the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for
the financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year ended 31st March 2017,

Chief Financial Officer

Date a:[q l (=

Council Approval of Statement of Accounts

These accounts were approved by resolution of the Performance & Audit Committee.

Do /%w@_

Vice Chair of the Performance & Audit Committee

Date 2 {C‘{‘—J_
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ARMAGH CITY BANBRIDGE AND CRAIGAVON
BOROUGH COUNCIL

I have audited the financial statements of Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council for the
year ended 31 March 2017 under the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005. The financial
statements comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement and the related notes. These financial statements have
been prepared under the accounting policies set out within them, | have also audited the information in the
Remuneration Report that is described in that report as having been audited.

This report is made solely to the Members of Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council in
accordance with the Local Government {Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and for no other purpose, as specified
in the Statement of Responsibilities.

Respective responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer and the independent auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Council’s and Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities, the Chief
Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the financial year and the
financial position as at the end of the financial year. My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in
accordance with the Local Government {(Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of
Audit Practice. | conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland). Those standards require me and my staff to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical
Standards for Auditors,

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council; and the overall presentation of the financial
statements. In addition I read all the financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts
to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information
that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowtedge acquired by
me in the course of performing the audit. If | become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies | consider the implications for my report.

Opinion on financial statements
In my opinion:
» the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and statutory
requirements and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-
17 , of the financial position of Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council as at 31
March 2017 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended; and
o the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government
{Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 and the Department for Communities’
directions issued thereunder.
Opinion on other matters

In my opinion:

the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Department for Communities directions made under the Local Government {Accounts and Audit)
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Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015; and

the information given in the Narrative Report for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 is consistent with
the financial statements.

Matters on which | report by exception
I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which | report to you if:

e in my opinion:
o the Annual Governance Statement:

» does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom 2016-17 ;

*  does not comply with proper practices specified by the Department for Communities;
= is misleading or inconsistent with other information | am aware of from my audit; or
o adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

o the statement of accounts and the part of the remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records; or

o | have not received all of the information and explanations | require for my audit, or

e |issue a report in the public interest under Article 9 of the Local Government (Northern ireland)
Order 2005; or

¢ | designate under Article 12 of the Local Government {Northern Ireland) Order 2005 any
recommendation made to the Council; or

s | exercise the other special powers of the auditor under Article 19 to 21 of the Local Government
(Northern Ireland) Order 2005.

Certificate

| certify that | have completed the audit of accounts of Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough
Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government {Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and
the Local Government Code of Audit Practice.

Louise Mason

Local Government Auditor
Northern Ireland Audit Office
106 University Street

Belfast

BT7 1EU

2+ September 2017

2%
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Armagh City Banbridge and Cralgavon Borough Councll
Movement In Reserves Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017

IS L e R S Y S

12,134,938 9 329,144 21,499,981 68,631,713

Movement in reserves
during the year

Surplus/ {Deficit) on the
provision of services

[
0

{943,839) {943,839} -
Other Comprehensive

, - 22,219,883
Incame and Expenditure

e

Reserves

90,131,694

[743.839)

22219883

Total Comprehensive
income and Expenditure
Adjustments between
accounting basis & 4,378,230 - 92,528 4,470,758 {4,470,758)
funding under regulations

Net increase before

transfers fo Statutory and 3.434,31 - 92,528 3,526,919 17,749,125
Other Reserves
Trorsfers to / from
Statutory and Other
Increase/ Decrease In
year

(743,839) - - (743,839) 22,219,883

1,180,883 (1,180,883 : - .

4,615274  (1,180,883) 92,528 3,524,919 17,749,125

21,276,044

21,276,044

21,274,044

111,407,738

Balance as at 31 March 2014 16,750,212 7.854 9% L 25,026,900 86,380,838

Movement in reserves
during the year

Surglus/ [Deficit) on the

provision of services {3.112.73¢) 5 & (3.112.734) -

Other Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure ) ) i B (5.136,804)

{3,112,736)

(5,136,804}

Total Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Adjustments beftween
accounting basis & 5,201,524 - 114,740 5318264 (5.318.264)
funding under regulations

Net increase before

transters to Statutory ond 2,088,788 - 116,740 2,205,528 (10,455,048)
Other Reserves
Tronsters to / from
Stalutory and Other {1.742,899) 1,742,899 £ : B

Increase in yeor 345,889 1,742,899 114,740 2,205,528 {10,455,048)

(3.112,738) - - (3,112,735) (5,134,804}

(8,249,540}

(8,249,540)

(8.249.540)

103,158,198

Bclonce as at 31 March 2017 17,096,101 9,597,893 538434 27,232,428 75,925,770
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Armagh CHy Banbridge and Cralgavon Borough Councll

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017

g BET - 4Exp¢ndlh.l g
ihure a‘t@,_,wwé@@ ﬁ_ﬁt

HEFLE
Gross Im:orne

"‘u\\" | J&

Ncl Expundlh.lre_.

% ' ‘-‘E" ‘!.':-'.

Leisre and Recreational 2 35320974 7834208  27,486746
Services

Environmental Services 2 27,792,983 3,605,374 24,187,607

Panning cnd e 2 12094639 5000065 7,194,574
Pevelopment Services

Highvigys ond Transort 724,767 917,077 (192311)
Services

DRALSIOCO e 2 4953180 86977 4,866,203
Management

Other Services 2 2256925 1,290,389 966,535

S AR 83.243.458 734112 44.509.354

35,168,305
29,076,647
10,927,712

516,534

5,685,983
2,846,639

84,221,820

8,291,245
3,878,964
5122812

789,122

132,414
971,092

19,185,649

26,877,060
235,197.683
5,804,900

{272.588)

5,553,569
1.875.547

65,036,171

Continuing Operations

Other Operating

Expenditure 7 1,339,579 116,740 1,222,839

Financing and tnvestment

Income and Expendilure 8.10d  3.808.040 442,298 3,365,742

{Surplus) or Deficit on
Discontinued Operalions

Share of Operating Results
of associotes and joint 29 - - 5
ventures

3,896,804

88.118.624

7.528

144,655

19.337.832

(7,528)

3752149

68,780,793

Net Operating Expenditure B8.391,087 19,293,150 49,097,935

Taxation and Non-$pecific 9 : 45985201  (65.985.201)
Grant Income

Sl Rl Em the 88,391,087 85278351 (3,112.736)

88,118,624

67,836,953

87,174,785

(67,8356,953)

{943,839)

Provision of Services

Surplus/({Deficit) on
revaluafion of non-curent 10 10,449,194
assels

Surplus/(Deficit) arsing on
revaluation of available- 26 -
for-sale financial assets

Remeasurements of the
Net Defined Benefit 20 {15,586,000)
Liability {Asset)

Share of Other

Comprehensive

Expendilure & Income of 29 2
associotes and joint

venlures
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (5,134,804)
Tetal Compsehensive Income and Expenditure (8,24%,540)

7.829.695

12,390,188

22,219,883

21,276,044



Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017

31st March 2016

] i e e S e ek i
Fixed Assets 0 193,045,087 187,818,881
Long Term Investments 5 - -
Investment in Associates 20 R B
and Joint Ventures
Long Term Debtors 14 1,624,188 1,843,184

Short Term Investments 15 - -
Inventories 13 327,889 430,264
Short Term Debtors 14 5,985,405 7.137.083
Cash and Cash Equivalenis 24 9.640,775 6,872,607
Asseis Held for Sale 10 - -

Bank Overdraft 24 = =
Short Term Borrowing 16 2,155,972 2.200,422
Short Term Creditors 17 8,889,793 2,131,092
Provisions 18 416,921 472,434
CURRENT LIABILITIES i 11,803,950
Long Term Credilors 17 - -

Provisions 18 3,105,514 3,329,801
Long Term Borrowing 14 42,880,235 45,069,980
Other Long Term Liabilities 20, 5¢ 50,014,510 32,490,550
Donated Assels Account 21 - -

Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 22 - -

LOHG TERAA LIABILITIES 94,002,259 B0.890.33

USABLE RESERVES

Capital Receipts Reserve 25 538,434 421,694
Capital Grants Unapplied Account 25 - -
Capital Fund 25 4,074,097 4,074,097
Renewal and Repairs Fund 25 - 150,298
Other Balances ond Reserves 25 5,523,796 3.630.599
General Fund 25 17,094,102 16,750,212

UNUSABLE RESERVES

Capital Adjusiment Account 26 58,349,258 68,037,286
Finoncial Instruments Adjustment Account 26 - -
Revaoluation Reserve 24 68,204,484 51,325,234
Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 26 - -
Pensions Reserve 24 (49,930,000} (32,484,000)
Capital Receipts Delered Account 24 - -
Accumulated Absences Account 24 [698.174) {495.682)
Landiill Regulations Reserve 26 - -
Provisions Discount Rate Reserve 26 - -

84,380,828

NET WORTH 103,158,19% 111,407,738
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Armagh City Bonbridge and Cralgavon Borough Council
Cash Flow Statement ot 31 March 2017

ervices (3.11273¢)  (943,839)

Net Deficit on the provision of s

Adjustment for non-cash movements 24 11,744,569 10,264,915
Exowiion of senvice thal oe investing and fnoncg octiies 24 84718 P4350N
Net cash flows from operating activities 24 8,347,115 5,885,775
Cash flows from Investing Activities 24 [3.426.712) [6.497.857)
Net Cash flows from Financing Activities 24 {2,152.235) [2.384,396)
Net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents 2,768,148 (2,996.478)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 6,872,607 9,869,085
Cash and cash equivalenls af the end of the reporting period 9,640,775 6,872,607



Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Accounting Policies

General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2016/17 financial
year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2017, The Council is required to prepare an
annual Statement of Accounts in a form directed by the Department for Communities in
accordance with regulations 3 {(7) and (8) in the Local Government (Accounts and Audit)
Regulations {Northern Ireland) 2015 in accordance with proper accounting practices.

These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2016/17 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2016/17 (SeRCOP),
supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The accounting convention
adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation
of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17 also
requires disclosure in respect of:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

- Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the significant risks
and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.

- Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure reliably
the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.

- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories
on the Balance Sheet.

- Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are
made.

- Interest payable on borrowings and receivable on investments is accounted for on the basis
of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows
fixed or determined by the contract.
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it)

ii)

v}

vi)

- Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet, Where it is
doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made
to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

Acquisitions

Council has not acquired operations {or transferred operations under machinery of
government arrangements) during the financial year.

Provision for Single Status, Job Evaluation and Pay and Grading Reviews

The Council has made a provision for the costs of settling claims for back pay arising from
discriminatory payments incurred before the Council implemented its Single Status Policy.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in
three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. In the Cash Flow Statement, cash
and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Council’s cash management.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible asset
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent assets are not recognised in the
Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it is probable that there will be an
inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to
the accounts.
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Discontinued Operations

Council has not discontinued operations (or transferrred operations under combinations of
public sector bodies) during the financial year.

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end.
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave, paid sick leave and
bonuses and are recognised as an expense in the year in which employees render service to
the Council. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements earned by employees but
not taken before the year-end and which employees can carry forward into the next financial
year.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate
an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept
voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the Non Distributed Costs line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of:

a) when the offer cannot be withdrawn or

b} when the related restructuring costs are incurred.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require
the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the
pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant
accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to
and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

Employees of the Council are members of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’
Pension Fund administered by the WNorthern Ireland Local Government Officers’
Superannuation Committee. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement
lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for the Council.
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The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’' Pension Fund

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund is accounted for as a defined
benefits scheme.

The liabilities of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’' Pension Fund attributable to
the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit
method — i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement
benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee
turnover rates, etc and estimates of projected earnings for current employees.

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices using a discount rate of 2.6% {based
on the indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bonds on the iBoxx Sterling Corporate
Index, AA over 15 years with recently re-rated bonds removed from the index).

The assets of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ pension fund attributable to the
Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:

quoted securities — current bid price
unquoted securities — professional estimate
property — market value

unitised securities ~ current bid price

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:

- Within the Cost of Services

1 Current Service Cost - the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
(liabilities) resulting from employee service in the current period.

2 Past Service Cost — {where applicable) the change in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation for employee service in prior periods, resulting from a plan amendment {the
introduction or withdrawl of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan) or a curtailment (a
significant reduction in the number of employees covered by the plan).

Any Gains or Losses on Settlement — {(where applicable} arising where a council enters into a

transaction that eliminates all further legal or constructive obligations for part or all of the
benefits provided under a defined benefit plan.
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- Within Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

3 Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset) — the change in the net defined
benefit liability {asset) that arises from the passage of time.

- Within Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure {(Remeasurements)

4 The Return on Plan Assets — excluding amounts recognised in the Net Interest on the Net
Defined Benefit Liability (Asset). This includes interest, dividends and other income derived
from the plan assets, together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan assets,
less any costs of managing plan assets, and any tax payable by the plan itself other than tax
included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the present value of the defined benefit
obligation.

5 Actuarial Gains and Losses — changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from: a) experience adjustments {the effects of differences between the previous
actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred) and b) the effects of changes in
actuarial assumptions.

Any change in the Effect of the Asset Ceiling — (where applicable) excluding amounts included
in the Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset).

- Within the Movement in Reserves Statement Appropriations

6 Contributions by Scheme Participants — the increase in scheme liabilities and assets due to
payments into the scheme by employees {(where increased contribution increases pension due
to the employee in the future).

7 Contributions by the Employer - the increase in scheme assets due to payments into the
scheme by the employer.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners
in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the
Movement in Reserves Statement appropriations are made to and from the Pensions Reserve
to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits
for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but
unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby
measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for
retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows, rather than as benefits, are earned by
employees.
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Discretionary Benefits

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in
the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any
member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for
using the same policies that are applied to the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’
pension fund.

As a result of Local Government reform on 1 April 2015, staff that transferred from Central
Government to the Council retained membership of the Northern Ireland Civil Service (NICS)
Pension Scheme. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums
and pensions). However, the arrangements for the NICS Pension Scheme mean that liabilities
for these benefits cannot ordinarily be identified specifically to the Council. The Scheme is
therefore accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme and no liability for future
payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet.

Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts
is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

a. those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period —
the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events.

b. those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the Statement
of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have
a material effect disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their
estimated financial effect.

The financial statements may subsequently be adjusted up to the date when they are
authorised for issue. This date will be recorded on the financial statements and is usually the
date the Local Government Auditor issues her certificate and opinion. Where material
adjustments are made in this period they will be disclosed.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement
of Accounts.
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Exceptional Items

When items of income and expense are material their nature and amount is disclosed
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in
the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of
the Council’s financial performance.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e., in the
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period
adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or
the change provides maore reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions,
other events and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance.
Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively by adjusting opening balances and
comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

Financial Instruments

Most financial instruments held by Councils would fall to be classified into just one class of
financial liability and two classes of financial assets:

- Financial Liabilities
Amortised Cost

- Financial Assets
Loans and Receivables
Available for Sale

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and
are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest
payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of
interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was
originally recognised.
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For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for
the year according to the loan agreement.

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited
to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement. However, where repurchase
has taken place as part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the modification or
exchange of existing instruments, the premium or discount is respectively deducted from or
added to the amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write-down to the
Camprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the loan by an
adjustment to the effective interest rate,

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread
over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term that was
remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount receivable when it
was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the District Fund Balance is
managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified into two types:

a. loans and receivables — assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted
in an active market

b. available-for-sale assets — that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or
determinable payments.
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Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value.
They are then measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by
the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the loans that the Council has
made, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal
receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.

Where assets are identified as impaired, arising from a past event and where payments due
under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the
asset's original effective interest rate.

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Available-for-Sale Assets

Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and
carried at fair value. Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the amortised cost of the asset
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. Where there are no fixed or
determinable payments, income (e.g., dividends) is credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement when it becomes receivable by the Council.

Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the following
principles:

a. instruments with quoted market prices — the market price
b. other instruments with fixed and determinable payments ~ discounted cash flow analysis

c. equity shares with no quoted market prices — independent appraisal of company valuations.
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The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following
three levels:

» Level 1 inputs - quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the
authority can access at the measurement date.

» Level 2 inputs - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are abservable
for the asset, either directly or indirectly.

= Level 3 inputs - unobservable inputs for the asset.

Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-5aie Reserve and the
gain/loss is recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Available-for-Sale Financial
Assets. The exception is where impairment losses have been incurred - these are dehited to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, along with any net gain or loss for the asset accumulated in the
Available-far-Sale Reserve.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that
payments due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or fair
value falls below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to the Financing and
investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. If the asset has fixed or determinable payments, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future
cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Otherwise, the impairment
loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value against the acquisition cost of the instrument [net
of any principal repayment and amortisation).

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in
the Available-for-Sale Reserve,

Where fair value cannot be measured relizbly, the instrument is carried at cost (less any
impairment losses).

Instruments Entered Into Before 1 April 2006

The Council entered into a number of financial guarantees that are not required to be
accounted for as financial instruments. These guarantees are reflected in the Statement of
Accounts to the extent that provisions might be required or a contingent liability note is
needed under the policies set out in the sections on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets.
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Foreign Currency Translation

Where the Council has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency the
transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the
transaction was effective. Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the year-end
they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or losses are
recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable
assurance that:

a. the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
b. the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement until conditions attaching to the grant or contribution have been satisfied.
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential
embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed
by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned
to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income {non-ring-fenced revenue grants and
all capital grants) in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement.,

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure it is posted to the Capital
Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied it is posted to the Capital Adjustment
Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by
the Council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences} is capitalised when it is expected
that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the
Council.
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Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is
technically feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available)
and the Council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential
by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured
reliably as attributable to the asset and restricted to that incurred during the development
phase (research expenditure is not capitalised).

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or
primarily intended to promote or advertise the Council's goods or services.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair
value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market. In
practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion and they are therefore
carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its
useful life to the relevant service line(s) in Cost of Services on Continuing Operations in the
Comprehensive thcome and Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the asset might be impaired — any losses recognised are
posted to the relevant service line(s) in Cost of Services on Continuing Operations in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes,
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an
impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the
District Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital
Adjustment Account and {for any sale proceeds greater than £5k} the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Inventories & Long Term Contracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average costing formula.

Long Term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the surplus or deficit on the
provision of services with the value of works and services received under the contract during
the financial year.

Investment Property
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital

appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the
delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale.
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Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on
the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm'’s
length. Investment properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to
market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and
Investment Income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and result in
a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are
not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the District Fund Balance. The
gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipts
Reserve.

Landfill Allowance Scheme

The Landfill Allowances Scheme operates under the Landfill Allowances Scheme (Northern
Ireland) Regulations 2005. Local Authorities are allocated annual target figures for the
maximum amount of biodegradable municipal waste that can be sent to landfill but there are
no tradable allowances. It is not a ‘cap and trade’ scheme since landfill allowances are not
tradable. For this reason, landfill allowances are not recognised as assets on the Balance
Sheet.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the

risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property from the lessor to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a |lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered
separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in

return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of specific assets.
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The Council as Lessee - Finance Lease

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at
the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the
present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a
liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to the
carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down
the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the lease
liability, and

b. a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease
term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life.

The Council is not required to raise district rates to cover depreciation or revaluation and
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual provision is made from
revenue towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements.
Depreciation and impairment losses are therefore replaced by a revenue provision in the
General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account
in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

Operating Leases:

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made an a straight-line basis over the life of the
lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments {e.g. there is a rent-free period at
the commencement of the lease).
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The Council as Lessor - Finance Lease

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the
relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the
lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and
Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A
gain, representing the Council’s net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal
(i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a
lease asset (long term debtor) in the Balance Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the lease
asset (long term debtor) together with any premiums received, and

b. finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not
permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and will be required to be treated
as a capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General
Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where
the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in
future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital
Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are paid,
the element for the charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property is used to write
down the lease asset (debtor). At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to
the Capital Receipts Reserve.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets
is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Council as Lessor - Operating Lease

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment,
the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made
on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of
payments (e.g., there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the
relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income.
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Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset
Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the
lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to
fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up
to the amount of any previously recognised losses. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held
for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Held for Sale, they are reclassified back
to non-current assets and valued at the lower of its carrying amount before they were
classified as Held for Sale: adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would
have been recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable
amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be decommissioned i.e. abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets
Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the
Balance Sheet {whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited
to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the
gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of
disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts and credited to the Capital
Receipts Reserve. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against district rates, as the cost of fixed
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.
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Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply
or service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of
Practice 2016/17 {SeRCOP). The total absorption costing principle is used - the full cost of
overheads and support services are shared between users in proportion to the benefits
received, with the exception of:

a. Corporate and Democratic Core — costs relating to the Council’s status as a multi-functional,
democratic organisation.

b. Non Distributed Costs — the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring
early and any depreciation and impairment losses chargeable on non-operational properties.

These two cost categories are defined in SeRCOP and accounted for as separate headings in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as part of Net Expenditure on
Continuing Services.

Fixed Assets

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, for rental to others of for administrative purposes and that are expected to be
used during more than one financial year are classified as Fixed Assets.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Fixed Assets is capitalised on an
accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service
potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to
deliver future economic benefits or service potential {i.e., repairs and maintenance) is charged
as an expense when it is incurred.

Measurement

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

a. the purchase price

b. any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management

c. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site
on which it is located

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.
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The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the
acquisition will not increase the cash flows of the Council. In the latter case, where the asset is
acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given
up by the Council.

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the
Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account,
Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are
reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement
in Reserves Statement.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

- infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction — depreciated historical cost;
- all other assets — fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its
existing use {existing use value — EUV)

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an
asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure
that their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end, but
as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the
Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a
loss previously charged to a service.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2008 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into
the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying
amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.
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Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

a. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the
accumulated gains), with any excess charged to the service line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.

b. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is
written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
service line(s} in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of
the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not
heen recognised.

The same accounting treatment is applied to revaluation losses as a result of a general fall in
asset prices across the board as opposed to a consumption of economic benefit specific to an
asset as is in the case of impairment |osses.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all fixed assets by the systematic allocation of their depreciable
amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite
useful life (i.e., freehold land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet
available for use {i.e., assets under construction).

Deprecation is calculated on the following bases:
- vehicles, plant & equipment and ICT — a percentage of the value of each class of assets in the

Balance Sheet, as advised by a suitably qualified officer on a straight line basis up to 50 years.
- buildings & infrastructure — straight-line allocation up to 50 years.

Componentisation

Where an item of Fixed Assets has major components whose cost is significant in relation to
the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Componentisation is only applicable to larger value land and buildings or equipment assets.
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xxiii)

Revaluations

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Heritage Assets

Heritage Assets are assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for their contribution to
knowledge and cuiture.

Heritage Assets are those assets that are intended to be preserved in trust for future
generations because of their cultural, environmental or historic associations. They would be
held by this authority in pursuit of our overall cbjectives in relation to the maintenance of
heritage.

Heritage Assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of revaluation gains
and losses) in accordance with the Council’s accounting policies on fixed assets. However,
some of the measurement rules are relaxed in relation to heritage assets as detailed below.
The accounting policies in relation to heritage assets that are deemed to include elements of
intangible heritage assets are also presented below. The Council’s collections of heritage assets
are accounted for as fallows.

Ceramics, Porcelain Work and Figurines - The collection of ceramics, porcelain work and
figurines includes tea and dinner services. These items are reported in the Balance Sheet at
insurance valuation which is based on market values. These insurance valuations are updated
on a periodic basis. The ceramics, porcelain work and figurines are deemed to have
indeterminate lives and a high residual value; hence the Council does not consider it
appropriate to charge depreciation. The collection is relatively static and acquisitions and
donations are rare. Where they do occur acquisitions are initially recognised at cost and
donations are recognised at valuation ascertained by the museum’s curators in accerdance
with the Council’s policy on valuations of ceramics, porcelain work and figurines.

Art Collection - The art collection includes bronze art sculptures and statutes, paintings {both
oil and watercolour) and sketches and is reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance value.
There is a periodic programme of valuations and the items in the collection are valued by an
external valuer. The assets within the art collection are deemed to have indeterminate lives
and a high residual value; hence the Council does not consider it appropriate to charge
depreciation. Acquisitions are made by purchase or donation. Acquisitions are initially
recognised at cost and donations are recognised at valuation with valuations provided by the
externail valuers and with reference to appropriate commercial markets for the paintings using
the most relevant and recent information from sales at auctions.
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Machinery, Equipment and other Artefacts from the Pottery Industry - The Council considers
that obtaining valuations for the vast majority of machinery, equipment and other artefacts
from the pottery industry that are exhibited within the museum would involve a
disproportionate cost in comparison to the benefits to the users of the Council’s financial
statements. This is because of the diverse nature of the assets held and the lack of comparable
values. Other than the small number of items that have been acquired recently, i.e. those
recently bequeathed to the Council, the Council does not recognise this collection of heritage
assets on the Balance Sheet.

Archeology - The Council does not consider that reliable cost or valuation information can be
obtained for the items held in its archaeological collection. This is because of the diverse
nature of the assets held and lack of comparable market values. Consequently, the Council
does not recognise these assets on the balance sheet. The Council’s acquisitions principally
relate to the collection donated in the early twentieth century. The Authority does not
{normally) make any purchases of archaeological items.

The Heritage asset details are held on a register for insurance purposes. Along with the
categories mentioned above the Council holds various items of jewellery, silverware, furniture
and miscellaneous items such as a book collection. These are held at various museum sites
including the Civic building. The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there
is evidence of impairment for heritage assets, eg where an item has suffered physical
deterioration or breakage or where doubts arise as to its authenticity. Any impairment is
recognised and measured in accordance with the Council’s general policies on impairment -
see note xxii in this summary of significant accounting policies. The trustees of the Council's
Museum will occasionally dispose of heritage assets which have a doubtful provenance or are
unsuitable for public display. The proceeds of such items are accounted for in accordance with
the Council's general provisions relating to the disposal of fixed assets. Disposal proceeds are
disclosed separately in the notes to the financial statements and are accounted for in
accordance with statutory accounting requirements relating to capital expenditure and capital
receipts (again see notes xx and xxii in this summary of significant accounting policies).

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of ecanomic benefits or
service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For
instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making
of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the
obligation, and measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure
required to settle the obligatian, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.
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prean]]

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance
Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year — where it
becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required {or a
lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the
relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered
from another party (e.g. from an insurance claimj, this is only recognised as income for the
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council
settles the obligation.

Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a
reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year against the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against District Rates for the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial
instruments and retirement benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council -
these reserves are explained in the relevant note to the accounts.

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Charges to revenue for non-current assets e.g. services, support services and trading accounts
are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding fixed assets during the
year:

a. depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service

b. revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off

¢. amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service,
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The Council is not required to raise District Rates to cover depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual provision from
revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its overali borrowing requirement (equal to an
amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in accordance with statutory
guidance). Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore
replaced by minimum revenue provision [MRP] in the General Fund Balance by way of an
adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement for the difference between the two.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to
the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year.
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital
resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the
General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts
charged so that there is no impact on the level of District Rates.

Value Added Tax

All expenditure and income, irrespective of whether it is revenue or capital in nature, is shown
net of Value Added Tax, unless it is irrecoverable.

The Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme (CRC)

Due to its low levels of energy consumption, there is no requirement for the Council to submit
CRC returns.

Fair Value Measurement

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment
properties and some of its financial instruments such as equity shareholdings at fair value at
each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
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a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b} in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability.

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest. When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the
authority takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use. The authority uses valuation techniques that
are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unohservabie inputs.

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the authority’s financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, as follows:

* Level 1 — quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the authority can access at the measurement date

* Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

* Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

Accounting Standards that have been Issued but have not yet been Adopted

- Accounting and Reporting by Pension Funds — Investment Transaction Costs

In the 2016/17 Code CIPFA/LASAAC indicated its intention to mandate the recommended
disclosure on pension fund investment transaction costs.

After consultation, CIPFA/LASAAC agreed to proceed with the transaction costs disclosure to
elevate concerns regarding the transparency of pension fund management expenses generally.
Transaction costs are clearly defined in IFRS {in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and 1AS 40 Investment Property). The requirement for disclosure on transaction
costs has been included in the 2017/18 Code of Practice.

- Amendment to the Disclosure of Investment Asset Concentration

In a review of application guidance on pension fund reporting, CIPFA/LASSAAC considered that
the information required under IAS 26 no longer provided materially relevant disclosures and
therefore the disclosure regarding defined benefit pension fund at paragraph 6.5.5.1 of
2017/18 Code of Practice refers to ‘Details of any single investment exceeding either 5% of the
net assets available for benefits, this is consistent with the approach in the Financial Reports of
Pension Schemes — A Statement of Recommended Practice 2015.

52



(i)

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

in applying accounting policies set out from 1a above, Council has not had to make any critical
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.

Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by
the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into
account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because
balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from
the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Council's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2017 for which there is a significant risk
of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Fixed Assets

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about the level of
repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual assets.

If the usefu! life of assets is reduced, depreciation increases and the carrying amount of the
assets falls.

(ii) Provisions

The Council has not made a provision for bad debt arising from non-collection of rate income
by Land & Property Services in future years. It is not certain how much uncollected rates will
be written off by LPS in future years, nor has it made a provision for Equal Pay settlements due
to the uncertainty of the amounts involved.

{iii) Pension Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes
in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of
consulting actuaries is engaged to provide the Council with expert advice about the
assumptions to be applied.

(iv) Arrears

A review of significant debtors balances has produced a specific allowance for doubtful debts.
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Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council
Noftes to the Financlal Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

2 Segmental Reporting
o Segmental Reporting Analysis

The analysis of income and expendilure by service on the faoce of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is specified by the Service Reporing Code of Praclice. The segmental reporting noles within the financial
statements are based on the summary first page of the General Fund - Service income and Expenditure Analysis in
the Department for Communilies’ Accounts Direction,

The General Fund - Service Income and Expenditure Analysis as presented fo the Depardment for Communities is as
follows:

2016/17

Cullure and Heritage 3.479.096 {793,314) 2,485,782 3.371,676 (677.012) 2,694,664
Recreation and Sport 23,570,788 {5.398.,982] 18,171,807 24,492,248 (5317,935) 19,174,313
Tourism 4232716 (641,643) 3,591,073  3.212.060 {903.170) 2,308,889
Community Services 4,038,374 (1,000.289) 3.038.084 4092321 (1.393,128) 2,699,194

Leisure and Recrealional Services 35,320,974  (7.834,228) 27,486,746 35,148,305 (B8.291,245)  246,877.060

Cemetery, Cremation & Moruary 802,001 {168,670) 633,331 750,491 (140,982) 589,509
Environmental Health 4,379,715 (1,779.501) 2,600,214 4,355,059 {1.536,720) 2,818,339
Flood Defence and Land Drainage - - - - - -
Public Conveniences 566,071 (7.797) 558,273 547,553 {8.852) 538,702
Licensing 289,332 {70,680} 218,652 311,693 (100.904) 210,789
Other Cleaning 2,859,931 (19.837) 2,840,094 2,781,158 {48,066) 2,733,092
Wasle Collection 9,000,492 {976,973) 8.023.51% 12,548,111 {1.149,873) 11,398,238
Wasle Disposal 6,317,274 {158,140} 46,159,134 4,176,009 (208,582} 3,967,427
Olher Community Assels 3.182.771 {423,778) 2765993  3,333.443 (664,986) 2,668,477
Minor Works 388,397 - 388,397 273110 - 273,110
Environmental Services 27,792,984 (3.605,3748) 24,187,609 29,074,647 (3,878,945} 25,197,683
Community Planning 349,018 - 349,018 237,418 {971 237.320
Economic Development 3,183,044 {568,333) 2614712 4,330,905 {1.456,457) 2,874,448
EU Rural Development 313,782 {240.246) 73.516 376,119 (479.748) {103.649)
Urban Regeneration and

Community Development 4,161,711 (1,151,077) 3.010,633 1,740,153 (406,828) 1,333,325
Planning Policy 2,492,652 [1,640,632) 852020 2,121,546 (1,429,031) 692,535
Development Conirol 28,584 - 28,584 66,054 - 66,054
Building Conirol 1,665,607  [1,399,757) 265,850 2,011,097 (1,350,431) 660,466
Environmental inifiatives 240 - 240 44,401 - 44,401

Planning and Development Service 12,194,639  (5,000,065) 7.194,574 10,927,712 {5,122,812) 5,804,700

Oftt-street Parking Services 724,767 (?17.077) 19231} 516,534 (789.122) (272.588)

Highways and Transport Services 724,767 (217,077} {192,311} 516,534 {789,122) (272,588)



Democrafic Representation ond

Management 1,698,837 (39.579) 1,659,258 1,598,435 {95,249) 1,503,184
Corporate Management 3,254,343 (47.398)  3.206,945 4,087,549 {37.168) 4,050,383
DRM and Corporate Management 4,953,180 (84,977 4,866,203 5,685,984 (132,415} 5,553,549
Trading Services 702,377 {397,078} 305,299 737,712 (306,174) 431,538
Non Distributed Costs 318,937 - 318,937 706,870 - 706,870
Central Services to the Public 1,235,610 {893,311} 342,299 1,402,057 {664,918) 737.139
Other Services 2,256,924  (1,290,389) 966,535 2,846,439 (971,092) 1,875,547

CONTINUING OPERATIONS 83,243,467 (1B,734,112) 44,509,356 84,221,821 (19.185,651) 65,036,171

On going reclassifications and coding adjustments associaled with departmental restructuring caried out during
2016/17 has generated a number of variances in the comparative year in respect of income and expenditure across
Services.

b Reconcillation to Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of porifolio income and expendiiure relate {o the amounts
included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statemeni

2001817 2006117 1541 2015/14
B — ¥ 4 A e T T Ty - ) (R eI B T B T
Net Cost of Services In Service Analysis 64,509,356 65,036,171

Iltems excluded from Service Analysis:

Add amounls not reported in Service Analysis but included in
Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Stalement - -

Remove amounts reported in Service Analysis but not
included in Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement - -

Cosl of Services on Continuing Operations in the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement 64,509,354 65,034,171

ltems included in Net Operating Expenditure excluded from

Service Analysis:
Other Operating Expenditure 1,222,83% (7.528)
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 3,365,742 3,752,149

Surplus or Deficit on Disconlinued Operations - -
4,588,581 3,744,621

Net Operating Expenditure per

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 69,097,937 68,780,792
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3 Adjusimeni belween an Accounting Basis and Funding Bosis under Regulations

a Amounts included In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but required by statute {o be excluded
when determining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year:

T T o

Amounis lncluded in iheléomprehensive Income und Expendl‘lure Slaiemenl bui requlred by sluiuie fo be excluded
when defermining the Mevement on the General Fund Balance for the year:

Revaluation increases/decreases taken to
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services 10

Derecognition {other than disposal) of non-

current assets

Impaoirments (losses & reversals) of non-cument

assets

Depreciatien charged in the year on non-

cument assets

10

Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital

under siatule

11,26

Camying amount of non cument assets sold 7

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E. invesiment
property aond infangible assets 24,25

Difterence between finance costs calculated
on an accounling basis and finance costs
calculated in accordance with statutory

requirements

26

Nel charges made for retirement benefits in

accordance with 1AS 19

20

Direct revenue financing of Capital Expendilure 11,24

Capital Grants and Donated Assels Receivable

and Applied in year

b

Capilal Granls Receivable and Unaopplied in

year

?c

Adjustments in relation to Short-term

compensated absences

26

Adjustments in relation to Lessor Amangements

Landfill Regulations Reserve Adjustment 26

Provisions Discount Rate Reserve Adjusiment 26
Amounts not included in the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Statement but

required by statute to be included when

determining the Movemeni on the General

Fund Balance for the year

Statutory Provision for the financing of Caopital

Investment

11,26

Employers contributions payable to the
NILGOSC and retirement benefits payable

direct lo pensioners

20

1,168,587
399,094
7.188.683  B.756.366
171,656
170992
{116,740) 54,252
8.089.000
(1.022,593)
[167.978]
202,492
(4,650,671)
(6,231,000}

2,515,092 9.515,092

85,000

{92.528) {7.528)

8.274,000

{3.342,773)

37.870

(4,684,451)

(6.114,000)

5,201,524 4,378,230
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Net transfers (to)/from statutory and other
arked reserves:

S A
25 150,278 150,298 - -

Capital Recelpts Reserve

Interest - -

Other 25 - - - -

Other Funds and eaormarked reserves e ———

Interest - -

From Other funds - -

Other 25 {1.893,197) (1.893.197) 1,180,883 1,180,883

{1.742,899) 1,180,883

4 Cosl of Services on Continuing Operations

Gencral power of compelence

Prior 1o Local Government Reform on 1st Apiil 2015, expenditure for special purposes was limited under Section 40 of
lhe Locol Government Finonce Aclt {Northem lreland) 2011. This section was repealed by Schedule 10 of the Local
Government Act {Northem Irelond) 2014.

Under Section 79 of the Local Government Act (Norihern ireland) 2014, the Council has the power to do anything
thal individuals generally moy do. Councils have the power to do this with or without charge. The power of
competence is not limited lo benefitling the area or ifs residenis nor is it limited by existing powers.

There was no acluol expenditure under the power of competence dwiing 2014/17 .

[¢] Exterrnit Audit Fees

The Council has incurred the following costs relating fo the annual oudit of the Statement of Accounts, cerfificalion
of grant claims and other services provided by the Councils external auditors.

014 4
SR e i A e Gt T s S =i - S ]
External Audit Fees 66,500 67.000
Grant Cloim Cerlification Fees - -
Other Fees 17.077 -

B 67,000

£17k of other fees payable to NI Audit Office were £1.2k for National Froud Initiatiave & £15.8k for Performance
Improvement Audit (£nil 2015/16).
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Bl Operating and Finance Lecisas

Council as Lessor
a/Finance leases {Council as lessc

The Council has leased out property to Banbridge Enterprises Ltd on a finance lease with a remaining term of 91

years,

The present value of lease paymenis receivable under the finance lease arrangemenits is recognised as a receivable
and included in both short and long term debtors. The difference between the gross amount receivable and the

present value of the amounts receivable is recognised as uneamed finance income.

£

Long Term Debtors
Finance leases- gross receivables 119,133 120,051
Less - Unearned finance income - -
Less - Unguaranieed residual value of property - -
Net Present Value 119,133 120,051
Short Term Debtors
Finonce leases- gross receivables 218 21
Less - Unearned finaonce income - -
Less - Unguatonteed residual value of property - -
Net Present Value 918 911
Gross receivables from finance leases
No loter than 1 year 218 211
Laler than 1 year and no later than 5 years 3739 3,712
Later than 5 years 115,394 116,339
Tolal gross recelvables | 120,051 | 120,962
Less-Unaamed fulure finance income on finance leases - -
Less-Unguaranteed residual value of properly - -
Net invesiment in finance leases [ 120,051 | 120,962
The net investment in finance leases may be analysed as {ollows;

201617 2015/16

£ £

No later than 1 year 218 211
Later than 1 year and no laier than 5 years 3739 3712
Later than 5 years 115,394 114,339
Tolal gross recelvables [ 120,051 | 120,962

The unguaranteed residual volues of the assets leased under finance leases at the end of the yeaor are estimated at

Enil (Previous year £nil)

The accumulated allowance for uncollectable minimum lease payments receivable is £nil {comparative year £nil)

No contingent rents were recognised as receivable by the Council.

The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the confract date for the entire lease term. The average interest rale

contracted is approximately 0.73% {comparalive year 0.73%)



b

The Council, in accordance with ils statutory and discretionary responsibilities, leases out property and equipment
under operating leoses for the following purposes:

- for the provision of community services, such as sporis facilities, tourism services and community centres

- for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodafion for small local businesses
- any other purposes

Rental income recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Staternent in the current year amounts to
£102,748. No confingent rents were recognised.,

The contracts are all non-cancellable provided the lessees adhere to the covenants and terms of the lease. The
lease lerms are between 1 and 983 years. Fulure minimum lease income is set out below:

Inmum lease renfals receivable:

No later than 1 year 43,303 - 43,970 -
Loier than 1 year and no later than 5 years 111,998 - 93.9L7 -
Later than 5 years 325 - 31.675 -

155,626 - 169,562 -

The ossels which are parily leased by the Council to third parties are included in the following categories of Property,
Plant and Equipment with carrying values of:

2016417 2005516

R 1 L —

£

Cosl 11,028,184 7.239.071

Accumulated depreciation and

impairments at 1 April [2.232,1 15 - (1.247,732) -
Deprecialion charge for Ihe year (437,949 - (326.242) -
Impdirments 256,627 400,000

Counail as Lessee
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8,607,729

6,065,097




A number of Council's vehicles are held under finance leases. The assets are included under Vehicles, Plant &
Equipment which form an integral port of property, plant and equipment (see nole 10g-leased assels).

Council holds some equipment under Finance Leases. The assels are included under Vehicles, Plant & Equipment
which form an infegral part of property. plant and equipment (see note 10g-leased assets).

No conlingent rentals were recognised as an expense in the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Statement
during the reporting pericd under review and no future sub-lease incorne is expecied o be received, as all assets
are used exclusively by the council.

The lease agreemenits for the vehicles and IT equipment include fixed lease paymenis and a purchase oplion at the
end of the respective lease 1erms. The agreements are non-cancellable but do not include any further restrictions.

Future minimum finance lease paymenis at the end of each reporting period under review ore as follows:

2016/17
Finance leases payments 43,948 95,409 - 139,377
Less: finance charges (4.094) {B.899) - (12,793)
Net present value | 39,874 | 86,510 | 5 126,384
2015/14
Finance leases payments 12,987 5,655 - 18,642
Less: finance charges {1.785) {1,105) - (2,890)
Net present value | 11,202 | 4,550 | - 15,762
2014/15

Finance leases payments - - = T
Less: finance charges - - - R

Net present value | 9 1| el | =1 g

Inciuded in the Bolance Sheetas:

+

urreni liabililies 37,874 11,202 .
[Leng term liabilities 86,510 4,550 -
Total [ 126384] 15.752 ] E




The Council has acquired its office photocopiers and printers by entering into operating leases with typical lives of
between 3 and 5 years.

The lease of land relates mainly o South Lough Neagh Shoreline project that Councit is undertaking. The expenditure
charged to services in the Comprehensive Incone & Expenditure Statement during the year in relation to these leases
was:

2014 y'm

um:m

ﬂlﬂi’ﬂ
!mﬁnm-

Minimum lease pcyments 10,111 1,483 26,406
|Conhngent rentals - - 5 3
Less: Sublease poyments receivable - - - -
Total | 1,483 | 10,111 | 1.483 | 24,406

No sub-lease payments or contingent rent paymentis were made or received. No sublease income is expecled as all
assels held under operating lease agreements are used exclusively by the Council.

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable operating leases in fuiure years are set out below:

2016/17 2015/16
Vehicles, Vehicles,
landand Plantand  landand  Plantand
Bulldings :mtmnﬁ qmm: Equipment
Minimum lease renfals payable;
No later than 1 year 1,483 - 1,483 10,111
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 4,472 - 5.692 -
Later than 5 years 3.512 - 3,774 -
Tolal | 9.467 | - | 10,949 | 10.111
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[X:]Employee Costs and Member Allowances
Staff Costs 2016/17 2015/16

Soloris and Wages J
Employers NIC 2,737,490 2182117
Employers Superannuation 5,858,381 5,978,313

Total stati costs 39,653,842 384692011

In addition, agency costs during the year amounted o £234.868 (2015/14 £372,207).

Staif Cosls include voluntary redundancies agreed by the Council during the year. There were no exit packages
agreed in 2016/2017, however a cost of £395k Is chorged to the 1 & E in yeor as a result of an under provison in
2015/201é, This includes £125k of costs fo NILGOSC paid post 2016/2017 year-end and accrued. A summary of the
cosls of redundancy packages paid to officers is included in the Renumeration Report.

The Council's cument contribulion rale to NILGOSC scheme is 20%. Al the last aclurial valualion, dated 31 March
2014, the Fund's assets as a whole were sufficient fo meet 26% of the liabilities accrued up to that date.

Average Number of Employees - where FTE represents fulllime equivalent employees

] Average Number of Employees

—_————as
r T

2015/16
: - % - -._-._.-:E
Leisure and Recreation Services 372
|Environmental Services 459 426
[Planning and Development Services 49 42
Highwcf/s and Transporl Service - -

Other

B g ¢ e i = e e

201611_7

Total Number

1 EL
o i, "

Full-fime numbers employed 247 95
Pari-time numbers employed 382 373

Total Number
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I4 Senior Employees’ Remuneration

o | P |

e

e e W )

.l i

i e

&/17

g\.‘h

£50,001 fo £60,000

£60,001 to £70,000

£70.001 to £80,000

£80,001 to £90,0000

£90,001 {0 £100,000

£100,001 to £110,000

£110,001 to £120,000

Toetal Number

21

14

sl Members' Allowances

|Basic allowance 583.114 582,198
Mayor's & Depuly Mayor's Allowance 26,245 26,000
Special Responsibility Allowances 98,581 99.000
Dependents' carers allowance 3,809 2,285
Employer costs 183,924 182,936
Mileage 45,995 43,850
Conlerences and Courses 2,104 119
Trave! & Subsistence Costs 688 842 |
Miscellaneous Costs - 5
Severance Payments - -
Total 944,450 937,230

e Northem Ireland Civil Service Penslon Arrangements

As a result of Reform on Ist April 2015, staff transterned from Ceniral Government to the Council are members of the
Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension Scheme.

The Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension arangements are unfunded multi-employer defined benefit schemes but
the Council is unable to identify ils share of the underlying assels and liabilifies. The most up 1o date actuarial
valuation was camied out as at 31/03/2012. This valuation is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary ond updated to

reflect curent conditions and rolled forward to the reporing date of the DOF Superannuation and Other Allowances
Resource Accounts as al 31 March 2017.

For 201 6-17, employers' contributions of £270,651 were payable to the NICS pension amangemenis at one of four
rates in the range 20.8% to 26.3% of pensionable pay, based on salory bands. The scheme’s Acluary reviews
employer contributions every four years following a full scheme valualion. A new scheme funding valualion based
on data as at 31/03/2012 wos completed by the Actuary during 201 4-15. This valuafion was used to determine
employer contribufion rates for the infroduciion of a new career average eaming scheme from April 2015, The
contribution rates are set to meet the cost of the benefits accruing during 2016-17 to be paid when the member
refires, and not the benefits paid during this period to existing pensioners.

Current employees can opf o open a parinership pension account, a stakeholder pension with an employer

contribution. No Council employees curently avail of this scheme ond, as it is a closed scheme, no new employees
are able to join it.

Il Health Retirements

7 persons relired early on ill-health grounds at nil cost to Council.
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7 a Other Operating Expendiiure
Surplus/Deficit on Non-Current Assets (excl Invesiment Properties)

£ £
[Proceeds from sale (116,740) {92,528)
Carrying amount of non-cumrent
assets sold {excl Investment
Properties) 170,992 85,000
54,252 (7.528)

b Other Operating Income/Expenditure

2016/17 2015/16

[Income
|Expenditure

2016/17 2015/16

[Surplusl / Deficit on Non Current Assels 54,252 {7.528)
Other Operating (Income) / Expenditure* 1,148,587 -
*Carrying amount of non-cument assets sold by Legocy Councils

1,222,839 (7,528)

8 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

a Interesi Payable and Similar Charges

Lecse/hlre purchose interest 4915 7.792

Bank interest 1,346 540
Government Loan interest 2,612,002 2,603,472

Commercial Loon Interest - -
Other interest {please specify) - -

2,618,263 2,611,804

The 2015/16 Bank Interest comparative has been analysed between Bank and Government Loan Interes!

b Interest and Invesiment Income

2016/17 2015/16

e N VR ety £ R e T
[Bank Interest 7.245 4,654
Employee car loan interest 1,379 3.203
NIHE Loan interest receivable 130,093 136,798 |
Investment income on Fund Balances
Capital Fund - -
Repairs & Renewals Fund - -
Other Funds - -

Ofther Invesiment income - -

138,717 144,655




c Pensions interest cosis

2016/17

e |teresi on fhne de |ed

2015/14

benefit liability {osset) 1,030,000
1.030.000 1,285,000
d Surplus/{Deficit) on frading operations
014 D
£ £

Income from trading -

Expenditure -

{Surplus)/Deficit for the year -

e Income, Expenditure and changes In Fair Value of Invesiment Properties

2016/17

2015/16

Income lnclud ng rental Income (303 58]]

[255,700) |

Expenditure 159,778

149,348

De-recognition in relation to
amounts written off -

Net income from investment

properties {143,803)

{106,352}

Surplus/deticit on sale of
Investment Properlies

Proceeds from sale -

Carnying amount of investment
properties sold N

{Surplus) /deficit on sale of
investment Properties: -

Changes In Fair Value of

{Invesiment Properties

{143,803}

(106.352)

Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure

EI'I'It. 17

Interest oyoble and SlmIIOl'
Charges

2,618,263

- 2,618,263

2,611,804

2,611,804

[Interest and Investment Income

(138,717)

{144,655)

{144,655)

Pensions inferest cost 1,030,000

- 1,030,000

1,285,000

1,285,000

Surplus/(Deficit] on trading
operations

Other investment incorme 159,778

(143,803)

149,348

{255,700}

{106,352}

Changes in Fair Volue of
Investment Properies -

3,808,041

3,365,743

(442.298)

4,046,152

{400,355)

3,645,797




% Taxotlon and Non Specific Grant Income

a Revenue Granis

2016/17

2015/16

r il EREETINETY

General {7.955,941) | (8,016,955}
Other - -

{7.955,941}) [8,014,955)

b Caplial Grants and Donated Assets - Applied

T, ot e s e iy
Government & Other Grants -
Conditions met and opplied in
year

{167.978)

{3.342.773)

|Gaovernment & Other Grants -
Transfer from receipls in advance

Donaled Assels - Condilions mel

Donated Assets - Transter from
donated assets credilor

¢ Capital Grants - Unapplied

1 | -

{167.978)

(3,342,773}

r

Gove

nmenl & Other Granls -
Conditions met and not applied
in year

Other

d District Rates

D14 0
S le
Cureni year {57.861,281) | (56.477.225)
Finalisation - previous year - -
Transitional Refief - -
Finalisation - other years - -
(57,861,281) (56.477.225)

2001617

2015/16

L (T ¥ £ 15

{57.861,281}

(56,477,225)

Revenue Grants

(7,955,241}

{8.016,255)

Capital Grants and Coniributions

{167,978}

{3,342,773)

{65,985,200) (67,836,953)
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Armagh City Banbridge and Craigaveon Borough Council
Notes to the Financlal Statements
fOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

10 c Intangible Assets

The Council also owns Intangble Assets which relale solely to market rights. The assets are not amortised.

Market Trading Rights 10,000 I
Public Path Creation Agreements - -
Computer Sobwore - -

10,000 10,000

d Investment Froperties

Reclassifications and fransfers to/from investment properlies are as follows:

- Abbey Street complex reclassified as operational.
- Units ot 25 Casilewellan Road were transferred to investment properties from cperational.

Propertie 016 O

o
Rental Income from Investment Activities 303.581 255,700
Direct Operating expenses c:risi_ng from investment properiies (159.778) {149,34B)
[Net gain/{ioss) i 143,803 | 106,352

e Herilage Assets

The £5m revaluation increase relotes fo heritage assets in Armagh County Museum which were transferred from Central
Government on 1 Aprl 2015 and which have been revalued in line with the insurance valuation.

Other heritage asset disclosures are included at note 1a{xxii).



f Asseis Held for Sale

Assets Held for Sale

e e A e e e Ty R e A P S e e

Cost or Valuation

Balonce os at 1 Apnl 2016 T

Adjustments between cost/value & depreciation/impairment -

Transiered from Non-Cumrent Assets dunng year -

Assets Held for Sale Donations -

Assets Held for Sale Revaluation increases/decreases to Revaluation -
Reserve

Revaluonhon mcreases?ﬂeereuses foken 1o Surplus or Dencit on ine -
Provision of Services

Assels Held for sale Imparment @ G.osl 1C Provision of Services -

Derecognifion - Disposals =

Derecognition - Other -

Reclassified from Current Assets Held for Sale to non cument Assels -
Held for Sale

Transferad to Property. Plant & Equipment during yeor =

Bolance as at 31 March 2017 -

Impairment

Balonce as at | Apni 2016 -

Adjustmenis between cost/value & depreciation/impairment -

Impairment losses/reversals taken o Surplius or Deficit on the Provision -
of Services

Derecogniion - Dsposals -

Derecognition - Other -

Reclossified from Gurent Assels Held for Sale 1o non cument Assets -

Transferred fo Froperty, Flant & Equipment aunng year -

Balance as ot 31 March 2017 -

Net Book Value

8alance as at 31 March 2017

|Balonce os at 31 March 20146 -

Assets Held for Sale Current

SR B e T R D

R R

Non Current

Cost or Valuation

Balance as at 1 Apnl 2015

Adjustments between cost/value & depreciation/impairment -

Transterred from Non-Cument Assets during year -

Assets Held tfor Saie Donations -

Assels Held Tor taie Revaluation increases/decreases 1o Revalvalon .

Revalualion increases/decreases taken to Surplus or Deficit on the -

Assels Held Tor saie imparment @ L.osT 1o Provision of services

Derecognition - Disposals

{85,000

Derecognition - Other

Reclassified from Current Assets Held tor Sale fo non cument Assefs =

-

Transferred o Properly. Plont & Equipment duting vear -

Balance as at 31 March 2014 -

Impairment

Balance as at 1 Apnl 2015 =

Adjustmenis between cost/value & depreciation/impairment -

[fmMpairment iossesireversals 1aken fo Surprus or Deficl on 1he Fravision -
of Services ]

Derecognition - Disposals -

Derecognition - Oiher r

Feclassihed fom Gument Assels Held for sale 1o non current Assels S

fransterred 1o Fropeﬁy. Floni & Equipment dunng year B

Balance as at 31 March 2014 -

The Council has no Lang-Term Assels that it intends o dispose of as at year-end,

K]




g Long-Term Assets - Leosed Assels

uipm
Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2014 668,032 159.214 827,944
Adjustment o opening balance [243.428] 42,049 (181.379)|
Additions - 153.895 153,895

Disposals = - =
Al 31 March 2017 424,604 375,858 800,462

|Depreciation

At 1 April 2016 459941 150.468 810,409
Adusiment to opening balance [358.072] 62,049 {296,023}
Disposals - - -
Provided for year 16,462 19,234 35,698
At 31 March 2017 318.331 231,753 550,084
|Net Book Value | 106,273 | 144,105 | 250,378

Veficles  Equipment

Cost or Valvation

At T April 2015 568,032 152,914 820,946
hAddim‘ H - 7.000 7.000
Dispsals = - -
At 31 March 2014 668,032 159,914 827,944
Depreciation

A1 1 April 2015 640,523 149,248 789,771
Disposals - - =
Provided for yvear 19.418 1,220 20,638
At 31 March 291 [] 659,941 E&“B 810,40%
Net Book Value 8,071 9,444 17,537

Adjustments to opening lease balances represent vehicles ond equipment held at nil net bock value but still in use by
Council.

h Fair Value Hierarchy for Surplus Assets

The Council Holds Surplus Assets to the Value of Approx £1.1m and a valuation was cared oul as at 1 April 20146 by an
independent Valuer from Land and Property Services.

™
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Capital Expenditure and Coplial Financing

NOTE: The total Capital Expenditure incumed in the year {(and comparative year) is shown below - including the value of
assels acquired under finance ‘eases and PFI/PPP conlracts together with the resources that have been used to finance it.
Where Capital Expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used, the expenditure resulls
in an increase in the CFR, a measure of the Capilal Expenditure incured historically by the Council that has yet o be
financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note.

Cuapitel Expenditure

Opening Capital Flnanclng Regquirement

2016/17
£
68,456,363

2015/16
£
66,550,429

2014/15
£

Caphal Investment

|Property, Plant and Equiprment

3,711,430

9,933,157

Invesiment Properties

Intangible Assets

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capilal under
Statute

3, 26

171,656

Derecognise Other

10

{7.062)

Investiments

Sources of Finance

Capital Receipts

Government Granis and Cther Contributions

(167.978)

{3.342,773)

Transfers from Earmarked Reserves

Sums set aside from Revenue:

Direct Revenue Confributions

3,26

{1.022.593)

Minimum Revenue Provision **

3.26

14.650,671)

{4,684,451)

Clasing Capital Financing Requirement

Explanction of Movements in Year

§6,491,145

2016/17
£

48,456,362

2015716
£

201415
£

increase in underlying need {0 borow {2119,113) 1,905,934 -
Assets acquired under fnance leases 153,895 - -
Assets acquired under PFI/PPP contracts - - -
Increase/{decrease) in Capitcl Financing Requirement (1,965.218) 1,905,934

(B Future Capitel Commitments

The Council hos an ongoing programme of capital works including the following:

Schemes underway al year end amounted {o £2.9m ond include Banbridge Civic Building which was
compleled in June 2017 at a total cost of £1.5m. Building works at the new South Lake Leisure Centre in
Craigavon are expected o commence in the 2018/19 financial year at an estimated total cost of £35m.

Schemes underway

Gross Cost

£
2,874,952

Grant Aid
£

Net Cost
£
2,874,952

QOther Commitments

596,698

596,698 |

Total 3.471,650 3,471,450
orie O 0

Qil and Fuel 42,736 45,758

Stores 191,934 297,645

Other Stock 93.219 86,862

Total 327,889 430,265

The cost of inventories written down, recognised as an expense and included in ‘services' amounied to

£698.



Government Deportments

Other Councils

Public corporations and frading funds

Bodies external 1o general government

The largest proportion of Council's Deblors relates to Government Grants.

76

IEmployee car loans 10,171
Revenue Granfs - =
Capital Grants - -
Interest Receivable - -
Capital Deblors - -
Loans and advances - -
[Finance lease debtors - -
Trade debtors - -
ITHE Loans 1,501,170 1.712.962
[Other 119,133 120,051
|Impairment of loans and receivables - =
Total Leng-Term Debtors 1,424,188 1,843,184
[*] Short Term Debiors 20148/17 2015/14
£ £

Goavernment Depariments 2,971,018 3,872,781
Other Councils 218,897 247,775
|Public corporations and trading funds - -
Bodies external to general government 359,533 189,522
IWHE loans 168,360 o
[Employee car loans 6.626 9.569
Revenue Gronts - 76,429
|(_:0pihal Granls - -
|interest Receivabie - 1,627
Capital Bebtors - .
Value Added Tax 1,264,393 914,333
Prepayments 253,558 126,727
Finance lease debtors 218 -
Cther 249,018 245,393
Trade receivables 585,009 1,524,455
Impairment loss - Trade receivables {231,925} (71,52B)
Total Short-Term Debtors 5,985,405 7.137.083
Total Debtors 7,609,593 8,980,247
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Investments
[-]Long Term Investments 2016/17 2015/14
£ £
Investments - general - -
[Invesiments - reparrs and renewdls - -
|Investments - capitol fund - -
[investments - other - -

Analysed over:

Money market deposits - -
Other deposits - -

Total Leng-term Investiments - -

Investments - general - -
[investmenis - repairs ond renewals S =
[Investmenits - capital fund - -
[investmenis - other - -

Total Short-term Investments = .

Money market deposits - -
Other deposits - -

Total Loeng Term and Short-term Investments 5 B

i



Loans re-payable within one year 2,116,098 2,189,220
Finance Lease Principal 39.674 11,202
otc 0 Orro q 9 00,4
[-1lLong Baorrp g #) 0 6

Between 1 ond 2 years 2,089,422 2116099
Between 2 and 5 years 5,805,997 5,991,145
Between 5 and 10 years 13.720.76% 12,961,170
In more than 10 years 21.264.047 24,001,544
Analysed over:

Finance Lease Principal - a5
|Loans 5,000,000 5.000,000
|Government Loans fund 37,880,235 40,069,945

Interest rates on Governmenti Loans and Lender Oplion Buyer Option (LOBO} Loans range from between 3% ond 11.125%

Government Loans Fund

Tolal Borrowing

L F 8 Creditors
Short Term Credilors

Government Departments

42,880,235

45,036,207

2016117

£
743117

45,069,980

47.270.402

2015716

&
240,477

2014/15

£

Other Councils 236,899 | A7 47Y 1,567,660

Public corporations and trading funds - - -

Bodies external to general govErnment 45,791 - -

Rates clawback N - -

VAT 121,243 174,388

Remuneration due to employees 498,024 530,561 -

Accumulated Absences 498,174 495,682 7,643 |

Receipts in advance 728,484 720,801 -

Trade creditors - - 7.818

Other 5.816,061 4,929,684 -
[-]Lcng dito 0 0

®

Government Departments

Other Councils

Public corporations and trading funds

Rates clawbock

Bodies external 1o general government

Remuneration due to employees

Accumulated Absences

Receipts in advance

Trade creditors

Other

Total Creditors

8,889,993

9,131,092

1,583,121

The Creditor Balance for "Other” includes payments due to HMRC and the Councit Suppliers



18

c Payment of Involces

The Council has a farget of paying supplier invoices within 30 calendaor days.
During the year the Council paid 29,179 invoices totalling £41,241,750 {2015/16 25,057 invoices totaling
£38,946,470)

The Council paid;

19,378 invoices within the 30 day target (66%);

7,148 invoices within the 10 day farget (24.5%); ond

9.801 invoices outside of the 30 day target (34%).

The average number of days taken o pay suppliers during the year was 28.5 days.

Provisions
Increase in
provision
2016 during year Utilised during year
£

Balance as
at 1 Aprit

Inferest cost
Unused amounts and/cr discount Balance as af 31
reversed rate changes March 2017

Landfill - Craigavon 2,683,782 {65,440, {53,847} 2,564,495
Single Status 472,434 228,644 (284,159 - - 414,921
Landfill - Armagh 246,019 - - {105,000] - 141,019
Le_gol Issues 400,000 - - - - 400,000
Total 3,802,237 228,644 {349,599} {105,000) {53.847) 3,522,435
Cumrent Provisions 472,436 228,644 {284,159) - - 416,92%
Long Term Provisions 3,329,801 - [65,440) {105.000] {53,847 3,105,514

3,802,237

228,644

{349,599)

{105,000)

Comparative Year

(53,847)

3,522,435

0 0 0 0 veo d ] O ersed ang 0
Lancfili - Crcigcvon 2.877.8_42 - - - {194,060} 2,683,782
Single Siatus 1,563,302 619,805 (1.710.671) - - 472,434

|Landfill - Armagh 245,019 - - - - 246,019
Legal Issues 400,000 - - - 400,000

5087143 619,805 {1.710.471) {194,060) 3,802,237
Current Provisions 1,563,302 619,805 (1,710,671} - - 472,436
Long Term Provisions 3,523,861 - - - {194,060) 3,329,801

5.087.163

619,805

£1,710.671)

3,502,237

Landfill - Cralgavon

{194,060

NI Environment Agency required that an adequate provision is made for londfill attercare cosis. This was formally revalued in
2016/17 by an external company to ensure that the provision is an adequale estimate for the landfill cost liability,

During 2014/17 the Council sought independent external professional advice from its financial advisors, Arlingclose regarding
discount raies for landfiil. Based on the advice provided, discount rates based on Nalional Loan Funding borrowing rates
have been applied.

Single Status

This provision is set aside to provide for costs associated with a review of salaries and wages. This process shou'd completed
during the 2017/18 finoncial year.

Landfill - Armagh

This represents estimated restoration and aftercare costs in respect of a former londfill site which closed a number of years
ago.

Legal Issues

The provision is set aside for potential legal cosls and repayment claims that are cumentiy on-gaing.



19 Financial Instruments

The Council has no material exposure {o any of the risk types identified below inits dealings with Financial Instruments,

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions. as well as credit exposures to the Council's customers,
Customers are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors, with individual credit
limils being set in accordance with internal ratings in accordance with parameters set by the Council. The provision for bad
ond doubtful debts reflects the Council's assessment of the risk of non-payment by trade debtors and, as such, there is no
further additional estimated exposure to deiault and inability to collect.

Trade debtors and invoiced Government debl, inclusive of VAT, can be analysed by age as follows:

O [ Q% e
O
Less than one month 645,324
Two to 3 months 62,237
Maore than 3 months 387076

There is no historical experience of defaull in relation to deposils with banks and other financial institutions. Therefore there is
no estimated exposure to risk of default.

Liquidity Risk

As the Council has ready access 1o borrowings from the Department of Finance's Consolidated Fund, there is no significant
risk that it will be unable 1o raise finance to meet its commitments under Financial Instruments, The maiurity analysis of
financial liabilities is included in notes 15 to 17, All rade and other payables are due for payment within one year,

Market Risk
Interest rate risk
The Council is exposed to risk in terms of interest rale movements on its investments and deposits but the potential risk and

exposure is minimal in 2016/17.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Council has a Euro boank account for paymenis however due to the size of the bank balance this would not be
considered a materiol exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.

Failr Value of Soft Loans and Government Loans
The Councilisin receipt of loans from the Deportment of Finance ol concessionary interest rates that differ from the
prevailing market rates. The foir value of these loans is £64,132,770 broken down as follows:

£
Government Loans 58,991,404
Market Loans 5,141,346
Total 64,132.770

The Council has not made any loans to voluntary organisations or other external bodies.




20 Refirement Benefils

a Participation in the Norherm Ilreland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund.

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the Council offers retirement benefits,
Although these benefits will not aclually be payable unti employees retire, the Council has o commitment to make the
payments that need to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entittement.

The Council parficipates in the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund adminisiered by the Northern
Ireland Local Government Officers’ Superannuation Committee. This is o funded scheme, meaning that the Council and
employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension's liabiiities with investment
assels.

b Transactions relaling to refirement benefits - Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Charges:

The Council recognises the cost of refirement benefits in the Cost of Services on Continuing Operations when they are
earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eveniually paid as pensions.

However, the charge the Council is required to make against district rates is based on the cash payable in the yeor, and the
real cost of retirement benefils & reversed out in the adjustmenis between accounting basis & funding basis under
regulotions line, in the Movement on Reserves Siatement.

The {ollowing transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stotement and the adjustments

between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations line, in the Movement on Reserves Statement during the year;

Note 201617 2015/14
G £

Net cost of services:

Curreni service cost 6,655,000 7,572,000
Past service cosl/ [_gc:iﬂ] 404,000 117,000
Gains and losses on settlements or curtailments - -
Net operaﬁng_; expenditure;

Net Inferest on net defined benefit Liabitty (asset) 1,030,000 1,285,000
Tolal Post-employment Benefits charged to the Surplus or Deficit on

the Pravision of Services 8,089,000 8,974,000
Movement in Reserves Statement:

Reversal of net charges made ior retirement benefits in accordance

with 145 19 and the Code {8.089,000) {8,974,000}
Actual omount charged against the general fund balance for

pensions in the year:

Employers contributions payable to scheme 4,231,000 6,114.000
Net Adjustment fo the General Fund (1.858,000) (2.8460.000)
The service cost figures include an allowance for administrotion expenses of £0.115M [1.73%).

omp e ome and penda o 0 0

Liability gains/{losses) due to change in assumptions 51,101,000 {11,901,000)
Liability gains/[losses) due to change in demographic assumptions (1,544,000 -
|Liability experience goins/(losses} arising_; in the year {11,831,000 {1.214,000}
Actuarial gains/(losses} on plan assets {22.140,000, 728,000
Other - (it appicable) - {1,188)

Total gains/(losses) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

1

15,584,000

(12,390,188)



C Assets ond llabllities in relation to retirement benefits

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme ossets:

2016/17

Bolance as at 1 April 188,704,000 190,321,188
[Cument service cost 6,655,000 | 7.572,000
|Interest cost 6,564,000 6,241,000
Contributions by members 1,812,000 1,655,000 |
Remeasurement [goins) and losses:
Actuariol gain?llosses arising from changes in financial assumptiony 51,101,000 {11.,901,000)
Actuarigl goins/losses orising from demographic changes {1.544,000] -
Acluarial gains/losses arising on Tabifies from experience 11,831,000 {1.216,000]
Oflher (il applicable] - {1,188} |
Past service costs/{gains) 404,000 117,000
Losses/{gains] on curtailments - -
Lic:bilill'e;exﬁnguished on settlements - -
Estimated unfunded benefits paid 91,000 [92,000)
Estimated benefits paid (4,245,000 [3,993.000)
Balance as at 31 March 237,529,000 188,704,000

2015/16

£

Balonce as at 1 April 148,305,000
[interest Income 5,534,000 4,956,000
Confributions by members 1,812,000 1,656,000
'Coninbulions by employer 4,140,000 6,022,000
Confributions in respect of unfunded benefits 91,000 92,000
Remeasurement gain/ (loss) 22,140,000 {728,000
Imm settiements g A
({Unfunded benefits paid {21,000} {22,000)
[Benefits paid {4,245,000) [3.993.000)
Balance as ot 31 March 187,599,000 156,218,000

The aciual return on scheme assets in the year was a gain of £27.474M (2015/16 gain of £4.228M).

Fair Value of Plan Assets

31/03/2017

£

3170372014

£

31/03/2015

£

Equity investments 139,761,255 112,320,742 *
Bonds 21,573,885 18,902,378 -
Property 19.697.895 20,620,776 -
Cash 4,877,574 3,593,014 -
Other 1,688,391 781,090 -

The above asset volues are at bid value as required by 1AS 19.

The amounts included in the fair vatue of plan assets for property occupied by the Council was nil.



The Council's share of the Net Pension Liablity {included in the Balance Sheet):

d Scheme history

31/03/2017 31/03/2014 31/03/2015
£ £ £

Fair Vaiue of Employer Assets 187,599,000 156,218,000 -
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation {236,133,000) {187,451,000) -
Pension assel/(liobility) of Funded Scheme {48,534,000) {31,233,000) -
Present Value of unfunded defined benefit obligation {1,396,000) (1,253,000} -
Other movement in the liability {asset) {if applicable) - - -
Net asset/{liability} arising trom the defined benefit obligation {49.930.000) {32,485,000) -
Amount in the Balance sheet:
Liabilities (49,930,000} (32,486,000) -
Assets - - -
Net Asset/[Liability} {4%,930,000) (32.484,000) .

Analysis of scheme assetls and liabilities 317032017 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
£ £

Fair Value of Assets in pension scheme 187,599,000 156,218,000 -

|Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation {237,52%.,000) (188,704,000 -

Surplus/(deficit) in the Scheme

{49,930,000)

(32,486,000}

Amount reccgnised in Other Coemprehensive

Income and Expenditure;

31/03/2017

31/03/2014
£
(12,390,188}

31/03/2015
£

Actuarial g_;oins!(losses]
Expected Return on Plan Assels

Increase/{decrease) in irecoverable surplus from membership fall and
other iactors

Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure 15,586,000 {12.390.188) -
Cumulative actuarial gains and losses 3,195,812 {12,390,188) -
History of experience gains and losses:

Experience gains and (losses) on assets 22,130.000] 728.020 -
Experience gains and {losses) on liabilities 11,831,000] (1,214,000} -

The liobiiities show the underlying commitments that the guthority has in the long run to pay retirement benefits. The total
liability of £49.93M has a substantial impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet, resulfing in a

net liobility of £49.93M.

However, statutory arangemenis for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Council remains healthy, The
deficit on the Northern reland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund will be made good by increased confributions over
the remaining working life of employees, assessed by the scheme aciuary.

K]



Analysis of projecied amount to be charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year to 31
March 2018

31/03/2018 31/03/2018
£ %
Projected cument cost 9,564,000 32.2%
|Nel Interest on the net defined benefit liability {asset) 1,221,000 41%
|Past service cost - 0.0%
Gains and losses on settlements or curtailments - 0.0%

10.785.0C0 36.3%

The tolal contributions expected to be made to the Northern reland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund by the
council in the year to 31 March 2018 is £5.934M. £0.092M of which relates to unfunded benefits

History of experience gains and losses

The actuarial gains/losses identified as movemenis on the Pensions Reserve 2015/16 can be analysed info the following
categories, measured as a percentage of assets or liabiities at 31 March 2017,

Experience _goins and [losses) on Assets -1 1.8016 -0.47% 0.00%
Experience goins and (losses) on L'abilities 4.98% 0.64% 0.00%

e Basis for estimating assels and liabilities

Ligbilities hove been assessed on aon actuariol basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the pensions that will be
payable in the fulure years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, elc. The Council's Fund liabilittes
have been assessed by Aon Hewitt Limited. an independent frm of actuaries, estimates for the Council Fund being based on
daia pertaining to the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2014 for funded benefits and 31 March 2017 for
unfunded benefits.

Q o 01& 1

Equity investments 74.5% 719%
Bonds 11.5% 121%
Property 10.5% 13.2%
Cash 2.6% 2.3%)
Other 0.9% 0.5%
Mortality assumplions:

Longevity at 65 curent pensioners: Years Year
Men 232 223
Women 258 24 8

Longevity at 65 for fulure pensioners:

Men 254 245
Women 28.1 27

Infiation/Pension Increase Rale 2.00%, 1.80%|
Salary Increase Rate 3.50% 3.30%
Expected Return on Assets 17.70% 2.80%|
Discount Rate 2.60% 3.50%|
Pension accounts revaluation rate 200% 1.80%

Take-up of option to convert annual pension into relirement flump sum: _
Service to April 2009 75% 75%
Service post April 2009 7 75%




Penslon Assumplions Sensiivity Analysis

The pension figures disclosed in these financial statements are sensitive to the assumptions used.

The approximate impact of changing key assumptions on the present value of the funded defined benefit obligation as at

31 March 2017 is set out below.

In each case, enly the assumplion noted below is altered; all other assumptions remain the same and are summarised in the

disclosure above.

Funded Pension Scheme Benefils

Discount Rate Assumption

Adjustment to discount rate +0.1%p.a. -u.lﬁp.u.
Present value of the lotal obligation 231,228,000.00 |  241.142,000.00
% change in the present value of the tolal obligation -2.10% 2.10%
Projected serv_ice cost 9,276,000.00 7,859,000.00
Approximate % change in projected service cost -3.00% 3.10%
Rote of General Increase in Salaries

Adjustment to salary increase rafe +0.1%p.a. -0.1%p.a.
flesent value of the fotal obligation 237.730.00(_)_ 234,553.000_
% change in the present value of the total obligation 0.70% -0.70%
Proiected service cost 9.564.000.02 9.5&4,000.00_
Approximate % change in projected service cost 0.00% 0.00%
Rate of Increase o Penslons in Payment and Deferred Pension Assumption

Adjustment to pension increase rate +0.1%p.a. -0.1%p.a.
Present value of the total obligation 239.526.000.02 232.791.000.00_
FG change in the present value of the tolal obligation 1.40% -1.40%
[Projected service cost 9.859,000.00 9.276,000.00 |
Approximate % change in projecied service cost 3.10% -3.00%
Post Retirement Mortality Assumption

Adustiment to moncmy age rating assumplion® -1 Year +1 Year
Present value of the tofal obligation 243,040.000.00_ 229.265.000.00_
% change in the present vave of the total obligation 290% -2.90%
Projected service cost 2,900,000.00 ,230,000.00 |
Approximate % change in projecled service cost 3.50% -3.50%

* A rating of +1 year means that members are assumed to follow the mortality pattern of the base table above for an

individua! that is 1 year older than that.

Maljeor categories of plan assels as percentage of total plan assets

31/03/2017

31/03/2016

o

31/03/2015

/o

Equity investments 74.50% 71.90% I

Government Bonds 5.40% 5.70% 0.00%
Corporate Bonds 6.10% 6.40% 0.00%
Property 10.50% 13.20% 0.00%|
Cash 2.60% 2.30% 0.00%
Other 050% 0.50% 0.00%]
Tolal 100.00% 100.00% 0.00%

g Northern Ireland Clvil Service Pension Arrangements

The Northem Ireland Civit Service Pensicn arrangements are unfunded mult-employer defined benefit schemes but the
Council is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities. The most up to date actuariol valuation was
carried out as at 31/03/2012. This valuation is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary and updated to reflect current
conditions and rolled forward to the reporting date of the DoF Superannuation and Other Allowances Resource Accounts as

at 31 March 2017,

B5
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Opening balance 0
Add: new donaled assels received {condition of
use not met) 0 0

Less: amounts released 1o The Lisinct Fund -
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 1] 0

Analysis of Donated Assets Account
The Council has no donated assets.

2015/16

Caopital Grants Received in Advance 2016/17

pening baiance
[d: new capilal granis received in advance [conanion of Use not

ess; omounis released o The Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

Analysis of Copital Grants Received in Advance
The Council utilised all Capital Grants received in year.

Contingencles

Guaranteed Minium Pension (GMP] is a portion of pension that was accrued by individuals who were contracied out of the
State Second Pension prior fo & April 1997. At present there is an inequality of benefits between male and female members
who have GMP. Uniil it is known how GMP equalisafion will be camied out, the impact of allowing for it in the pension
liabilities is uncerioin and no allowance for GMP equalisation has been made.

The Council has no other confingencies 1o disclose.
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24  Other cash flow disclosures
a Anaiysis of Adjustments to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

» 0 » ove = ole Ulé U &
£ £
Depreciation 10 7,188,683 2,515,092
mpairmen ownward revaluafions [& non-sale
derecognitions) 10 1,567,683 -
Amonisalion (included with depreciation above) - -
{increase)/Decrease In slock 13 102,375 {430,264)
{increase)/Decrease in Debiors 14 1,210,277 | (8,104,034)
Increase/[decrease] in imparment provision for bad debis 14 160,397 71,528
|increase/[Decrease] In Lredilors 17 (241,099 7,552,521
Increase/(Decrease} in Interest Creditors - -
Payments to NILGOSC 20 1,858,000 2,860,000
Carrying amount of non-current assets sold 0 170,992 85,000
[ATCTWIF wrillen off To Nef Cosl of Services 10 7,062 -
Coninbulions fo Olher Reserves/Provisions 18 (279.801) | (1.284,924)
Movement in value of investment properties-included above
in Impairment & downward revaluations (& non-sale
derecognitions) - -
Amounts posted to CIES from Donated Assets Account 2] - -

11,744,569 10,264,915

= D16 0 &

Purchaose of shor-term {not considered to be cash
equivalents) and long-term investments ({includes
investments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries) - -

Proceeds from short-term {not considered to be cash
equivalents) and long-term investments {includes
investments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries) - -

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment property and
intangible assets 7 (116,740} (92,528}
Capital grants included in "Taxation & non-specific grant
income” 9 (167.978) | (3,342,773)
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b Caosh and Cash Equivalents

For the purpeoses of the cash flow siatement, cosh and cash equivalenis include cash on hand and in
bank and short term depasits and investmenis {considered to be cash equivalents), net of outstanding
bank overdrafts. Cash and cosh equivalents at the end of the reporting pericd as shown in the
statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:

Notes 20146/17 2015/1¢ 2014/15
£ £ £
Cash and Bank balances 7.640,775 6,872,607 9.869.085
Short Term Deposits [considered to be Cash
Equivalents) 2,000,000 - -
[Shorf Term Invesiments [considered fo be Cash
Equivalents} - - -
Bank Overdraft - - -
¥ 640 o 50 ¥ 846%Y 08
L 9! ®) aleme (&) A ote 014 0 &
The cash flows from operating activities include: £ £
Interest received 8 138,717 144,655
Inferest paid 8 2,618,242 2,611,804

Cash flows from Investing Activities

2016/17
£

2015/14
£

Purchase of PP&E, invesiment property and infangible assets

{3,711,430)

{9.933.158})

Purchase of Short Term Investments (not considered to be
cash equivalents)

Purchase of Long Term Investiments

Other Payments for Investing Aclivities

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment property and
intangible assets

116,740

Proceeds from Short Term Investments {not considered to be
cash equivalents)

[Proceeds from Long Term Invesiments

Coapital Grants and Contributions Received

167,978

3,342,773

Other Receipts from Investing Activilies

Net Cash flows from Investing Activities

3 Cash flows from Financing Activities Notes 2016/17 2015/146

(3.426,712)

£

(6.497,857)

£

Cuash Receipts from Short and Long Term Borrowing

Other Receipis from i?incmcir\g Activities

Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liability
relating to a finance lease and on-Balance Sheet PFI
contracts

Repayment of Short and Long Term Borrowin_g_}_

5c, 14

[2,152,235)

[2.384,394)

Other payments for Financing Activities
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25 Usable Reserves
a Capital Receipts Reserve

These are capital receipts which have originated primarily from the sale of assets which have not yet
been used to finance capital expenditure.

The Copital Receipls Reserve is credited with the proceeds from fixed asset sales and other monies
defined by statute as capital receipts. These are originally credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expendifure Statement as part of the gain/loss on disposal and posted out via the Movement in
Reserves Statement to the Capital Receipts Reserve. The reserve is written down when resources are
applied 1o finance new capilal expenditure or set aside o reduce an authority's capital financing
requirement (or used for other purposes permitied by statuie).

aplial keceipls Reserve ote 03/20 03/2014

£ £
At 1 April 421,694 329,166
Movement
Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General
Fund - -
Disposal of Non Current Assets/ Capital Sales 3,7.25 116,740 92,528

Capital Receipts used to finance capital expenditure - -
Difference between finance and other costs and income
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements

Other Movements - -

A ] B 434 4! &Y 4

b Capital Grants Unapplied account

Where a capital grant or contribution [or part thereof] has been recognised as income in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Siatement, but the expenditure 1o be financed from that
grant or contribution has not been incurred at the Balance Sheet date, the grant or contribution shall
be transferred to the Capital Grants Unapplied Account {within the usable reserves section of the
balance sheet), reflecting its status as o capital resource available to finance expenditure. This fransfer
is reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

When, at a future date, the expenditure to be finonced from the grant or contribution is incurred, the
grant or contribution {or pan thereof] shall be transferred from the Capital Grants Unapplied Account
to the Capital Adjustiment Account, reflecting the application of capital resources to finance
expenditure. This transfer is also reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement or in the notes to the

accounts.

Capital Grants Unapplied account Notes 31/03/2017 31/03/2014
E £

At 1 April = =

Movement

Unapplied Capital Grants received in year - -
Unapplied Capital Grants transferred to CAA in vear 7 .




¢ Caplatl Fund

This fund was established under section 56 of the Local Government Act [NI} 1972, however this section
of the act was repedled under the Local Government Finance Act (Nothern Ireland) 2011, Councils
should disclose details where any of ithese reserves are earmarked for specific purpases.

£ £
At 1 April 4,074,097 4,074,097
Transfers between stalutory & other reserves & the General
Fund - -
Transfers between Capital Fund & CAA to finance Capital
Expenditure B - -
At 31 March 4,074,097 4,074,097

£

Craigavon Leisure Cenire 3,689,097 |
Bonbridge Legacy Projects 385,000
Total 4,074,097

d Renewal and Repairs Fund

This fund was established under section 54 of the Local Government Act {NI) 1972, however this section
of the act was repealed under the Local Government Finance Act (Nothern Ireland) 2011, Councils
should disclose details where any of these reserves are earmarked for specific purposes.

Renewal and Repairs Fund Notes 31/03/2017 31/03/2014
£ £

At 1 April 150,298 150,298

Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General

fund {150,298) -

Transfers between Renewal & Repair Fund & CAA to finance

Capital Expenditure 1 - Z

At 31 March - 150,298

£
Taotal -




e Other Balances & Reserves

Other Balance eserve ote 0 0 0 014
£ £
At 1 April 3,630,599 4,811,482
Transfers between stalutory & otherreserves & the General
Fund 3b 1,893,197 | {1,180,883)
Transfers between Capital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund &
CAA to finance capital expenditure 1 o -
At 31 March 5,523,796 3,630,599
£ £
Armagh Econemic Regeneration 463,977 813,100
Keady & Richill Environmental Improvements 220,595 1,000,000
Armagh Gaol 443,090 500,000
Banbridge Old Tech - 38,000
Craigavon Public Realm 78,737 635,000
General Repairs & Renewals 677,397 644,499
Development Fund 1,000,000 -
Backlog Maintenance Fund 1,000,000 -
Financial Assistance 440,000 -
Organisational Realignment 1,200,000
Total 5,523,796 3,630,599

This reserve is used to fund projects from the Legocy Councils, Bock log maintenance, Development
fund and Financial Assistance. During the year there was o redistribution of funds between projects

based on revised cost estimates.

f Generol Fund

This reserve shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally
accepled accounting practices, rather than the amount o be funded from District Rates. Councils
raise rates to cover expendilure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the
accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

General Fund Notes 31/03/2017 31/03/2016
£ £
Al 1 April _ 16,750,212 | 12,134,938
Applied Capital Grants 3, 11,26 (167,978} | (3.342,773)
Unapplied Capital Grants received in year o o
Direct Revenue Financing 3,11, 26 {1,022,593) -
Depreciation and Impairment adjustiment 3 8,756,366 2.515,092
Statutory Provision for financing Capital Investment 3,11 {4,650,671) | (4.684,451)
Net Revenue expenditure funded from copital under statute 3,11 171,656 -
Surplus/Deficit] on the Provision of Services CIES {3.112,735) {943,840)
Transfers between Slatutory and Other Reserves and the
General Fund 3 (1.742,899) | 1,180,883
Net movemenis on Pension Reserve 3,20 1,858,000 2,850,000
Disposal of Fixed Asseis/Capital Sales 3,10, 23 54,252 (7.528)
Difference between finance and cther costs and income
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements 3 202,492 37,890
Other Movements - -
At 31 March 17,096,102 16,750,212
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g Other Usable Reserves

AT 1 April

Applied Capital Granis

Unapplied Capital Grants received in year

Unapplied Capital Grants transferred to CAA in year

Direct Revenue Fincmcing

Depreciation and Impairment adjustment

Statutory Provision fer financing Copital investment

Net Revenue expenditure funded from capifal under statute

Surplus/|Deficit] on the Provision of Services

Transfers between Statutory and Other Reserves ond the

Net movements on Pension Reserve

Disposal of Fixed Assets/Capital Sales

Capital Receipts used to finance capiial expenditure

Difference between finance and other costs and income
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs
calculated in accordance with siatutory requirements

Revaluation & Impairment

Other Movements

Transfers between Capital Fund/ Renewal & Repair Fund &
CAA to finance Capital Expenditure

At 31 March
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Unusable Reserves
a Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arangements
for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for the acquisition, construction or

enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.

The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation,
impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, with reconciling postings from the Revaluaiion Reserve to convert fair value figures fo an

historic cost basis.

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properlies and gains recognised

on donated assets that have yet 1o be consumed by the Council.

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1
April 2008, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

The 'Other Movemenis' between the Revaluation Reserve and the Capital Adjustment Account
include £3.1m of 'Backleg' and 'Realised’ Depreciation i.e. the difference between the current and
historic depreciation annual charge. it also includes a reconciling adjusiment of £9.6m o agree the

Revaluation Reserve balance to the Fixed Asset Register.

Capital Adjustment Account Notes 31/03/2017 31/03/2014
£ [

At 1 April 68,037,286 | 47,498,477

Applied Capital Grants 3,9 167,978 3,342,773

Unapplied Copilal Grants transferred to CAA in year - =

[Direct Revenue Financing 3,11 1,022,593 -

Depreciation & Impairment adjustment 3 {8.754,366) | (9.515,092)

Statutory Provision for financing Capital Investment 3,11 4,650,671 4,684,451

Net Revenue expenditure funded from Capital under statute 3.1 171,656) -

Disposal of Fixed Assets/ Capital Sales 3 170,992} {85,000}

Copital Receipts used to finance capital expenditure 3,11 - -

Other Movements (6,430,256) 2,111,677

Transfers between Capital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund &

CAA to finance capital expenditure 11 - -

A H ¢ 8 8.0 26

b Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account Notes 31/03/2017 31/03/2016

£ £

At 1 April

Difference between finance and other cosis and income
calculoied on an accounting basis and finance costs
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements

The Council has no transactions that would require use of this account.




¢ Revaluation Reserve

The Revoluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of

its Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assels. The reserve is reduced when assets with
accumulated gains are:

- revalued downwards orimpaired and the gains are lost,
- used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
- disposed of and the gains are reciised.

The reserve contains only revalugtion gains accumulated since 1 April 2008, the date the reserve was
created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidaled into the balance on the
Capital Adjustment Account.

The purpose of this account is to build up a balaonce based on the revaluation jupwards or
downwards) of individual assets. All such revaluations {excluding impairment losses that have been
debited to Surplus/{Deficit) on the Provision of Services in the} are mirored in Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. It is o fundamental principle of this account that it never becomes negative,
If an asset was held at curent value when derecognised, the balance held on the Revaluation
Reserve is written off to the Capital Adjustiment Account.

Revaluation Reserve Notes 31/03/2017 31/03/2014
£ £

At 1 April 51,325,234 | 43,607,216

Revaluation & Impairment 10 10,449,196 9.829,695

Movemenis from associates & joint veniures - -

Other Movements 6,430,256 | (2,111,677)

d Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve
The Council has no fransactions that would require use of this account,

Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve Notes 31/03/2017 31/03/2014
£ £

At 1 April z T
Revaluation & Impairment - z

At 31 March - =

e Pension Reserve

Pe on Reserve ore 0 (0 ) 016

£ £
At 1 April {32,486,000) | {42,014,188)
Net Movements on Pension Reserve 3,20 {1,858,000) | (2.860,000)
Revaluation & Impairment 20 (15,586,000) | 12,390,188
At 31 March (49,930,000) (32,484,000)



{ Deferred Capital Recelpts Account

The Deferred Capilal Receipts Account records capital advances receivable where an amount equal
to the advance is included as a deferred capital receipt. These amounts are written down each year

by the amount of capital debt repaid to the Council in that year.,

Capital Receipts Deferred Account Notes 31/03/2017 31/03/2014
£ £

At 1 April - -

Other Movements - -

g Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise anse on the
General fund balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not token in the vear
e.g0. staff annual leave entitlement comied forward at the end of the financial year. Statuiory
arrangements are expected to require that the impact on the General Fund is neutralised by fransfers

to or from this Accumulated Absences Account.

Accumulated Absences Account Notes 31/03/2017 31/03/2014
£ £

At 1 April (495,682) {457,792)

Difference between finance and other costs and income

calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs

calculated in accordance with stalufary requirements (202,492) (37.890)

At 31 March {698,174) (495.682)

h Provisions Discount Rate Reserve

Provisions Discount Rate Reserve

Notes

31/03/2017

31/03/2016

At 1 April

Difference between finance and other costs and income
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements

Other Movements
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i Landfill Regulations Reserve

The Council has no transaction in this reserve.

At 1 Aprit = -

Difference befween finance and other costs and income
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements - -

At 31 March - -

Significant Trading Operations

The Council considers its only significant trading operation 1o be the provision of cor parking facilities.
The results for this are disclosed in Note 2, namely Income of £217,077 and costs of £732,402.

In deciding whether a frading operation is significant the Council takes beth financial and non-
financial criteria into account,

Financial criterion taken into account in deciding whether trading operations are significant to the
Council is:

- the risk of financial loss the Council may be exposed fo in providing the service to the user.

Non-financial criteria taken into account in deciding whether frading operations are significant to the
Council are:

- the importance of each individual trading operation to demonstrating the achievement of Council
targets and improving performance.

- the exposure of the Council to service reputational loss risk by providing the service.

- whether the provision of the service is likely to be of interest to the Council's key stakeholders and
their needs.

In applying the aforementioned criteria, the Council considers thot it is engaging in the following
significant {roding operations:

Significant Trading Operations 2016/17 2015/164
Turnover  Profit/{Loss) Turnover Profit/(Loss)
£ £
Off-street Parking Services | 917,077 | 184,676 | 789,122 | 272,588
Total [ 917077  184,676] 789122  272.588

Agency Services
The Council does not engage in any agency services.
Investment in Joint Ventures & Associates

The Council does not have any tranactions in this areq.



30 Relailed Parly Transactions

A Related Party Transaction is a transfer of resources or obligations between relaied parties, regardiess
of whether a price is charged. Related Parly Transaction exclude fransactions with any other entity
that is a related party solely because of ils economic dependence on the Council or the Govermment
of which it forms part. A related paorty is one that has the ability 1o control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. This includes
cases where the related party entity and another entity are subject to commaon control but excludes
providers of finance in the course of their normal business with the Councit and Trade Unions in the
course of their normal dealings with the Council. In addition where the relationship with the Council
ond the entity is solely that of an Agency {see note 28) these ore not deemed 1o be Related Parly
Transactions.

Council receives an annual operating grant from the Depariment for Communities (formerly known as
the Depariment of Environment). During 2016/17 it received £7.9m (2015/14 £8.0m} as reported in note
Fa.

Transactions with related parties not disclosed elsewhere in these financial stotements are set out
below, where a description of the nature and the amount of the transaction is as follows.

The Council paid grants of £136,551 to a number of organisations in which Councillors and Council
officers had an interest. These granis were made with proper consideration of declaration of interests.

Other
Payments
Membership of External Bodies Counclllors Grants (Gross)
No £ £
East Border Region Board 3 20,000 6.643
ICBAN 4 10,000
PCSP 10 174,025
Portadown 2000 2 95,311
National Association of Counciltors 8 3,280
NI Amenity Council 2 2,840
NI Local Government Partnership On Traveller Issues 3 500
NILGA 8 63,021
Somme Advisory Council 2 7.960 780
42 310,576 73,784

Council is represented by 10 Councillors on the Policing & Community Safety Parinership, one of
which acis as Chairperson. During 2014/17 Council provided £174k of funding to the Parinership and
annudily provides legal, financial and personnel services for which it received Enil gront in 2016/17
{2015/16 &nil).
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Councillors were also associated with the following orgonisations io which no payments were made
during 2016-17.

Membership of Exiernal Bodies No
Armagh City Cenire Management Commitiee 3
Amagh City Centre Townscape Heritage Partnership 4
Armagh, Banbridge and Craigaven Sports Forum )
Community Development Member Reference Group 10
Craigavon Heartown Initiative 1
East Border Region Members Forum 6
Eiected Member Development Charter 5
Local Action Group (LAG) 12
Mall Steering Group 4
NILGA Community Planning and Well-Being Elected Member Network 2
NILGA Planning and Regeneration Elected Member Network 2
Northern Ireland Housing Council |
Partnership Panel For Northern Ireland i
Peace IV Partnership 9
Portadown 2000 2
Portadown People's Park Reference Group 3
Refugee Working Group 5
1

Reserve Cadel Forces and Cadets Association for NI

Paymenis were also made During 14/17 to the following Local Authorities
Ards and North Down Borough Council

Mid and East Anirim Borough Council

Lisburn and Castlereagh City Ceuncil

Mid Ulster District Council

Newry Mourne & Down District Council

Belfast City Council
Fermanagh and Omagh District Council

Prior Year Re-statement
The Council have no prior year restatements.

Events After the Reporting Period

There were no events ocurring after 31 March 2017 which require adjustment to the Council's financial
statements or additional disclosures.

Authorised for Issve Cerificate

The Chief Financial Officer authorised these financial statements for issue on 1.7 September 2017.
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